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Financial Highlights
HBERE

Annual result for the year ended 31 March 2013 #HZE—Z—=F=A=+—HILFEEHE
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Revenue (HK$' M) Profit attributable Net asset value (HK$' M)
EEE (BB to shareholders (HK$ M) EEFE (BBBT)
BRERELEF (BEBT)
Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2013 Hz—Z—=F=-A=+—H1t
FEEE
 Revenue o HEF HK$477 million ATTEEBT
e Profit before income tax o [ F TE Al i A HK$30 million 0EEETT
e As at 31 March 2013 Shareholders’ equity s R T—=F=A=+—H
MR ER M HK$327 million R7TEEBT
e Earnings per share o FREF HK8.2 cents 8.2l
2013 2012
—EB-=F —T——F
Revenue (HK$’'000) EHE(TEL) 477,371 406,673
Operating profit (HK$’000) KRR (FBT) 31,588 25,404
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000) FR B T m A (F87T) 24,512 19,367
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRRERZF GBI 8.2 6.5
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) AR SR GEW) 5 2
Net asset value (HK$'000) BESE(TEL) 326,946 285,412
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013. We established long-term relationships with
property developers by supplying quality products and services. This reputation has helped us to achieve a growth in project
sales this year. The global economy is gradually getting back on track. The overall market is optimistic towards an end of QES3
and low-interest-rate period, while the funding squeeze in the PRC may cast a shadow to the economy.

In Hong Kong, the efforts of the Government are bringing the property market towards a more balanced growth. With an
increase in land supply, it is expected to see a rise in completion rates of housing in the coming years to meet with the public
demand. The economic recovery will relax budget concemns on interior decoration of property developers and individuals. We
shall closely monitor and get well-prepared to take up opportunities when they arise.

The synergy from our product ranges has become more evident this year. Starting from supplying ironmongery and bathroom
collections, we extended to kitchen collections and furniture for project and retail markets in Hong Kong and the mainland
China. Thanks to the confidence in and support from property developers and designers, we could perform cross-selling which
widens our market reaches. We treasure the role of retail outlets in displaying our products. While keeping vigilant to the
increase in rental expenses, we shall continue the pace of enhancement works in retail outlets to achieve better utilisation.

To express our sincere gratitude to the shareholders, we shall continue to uplift the corporate value and distribute dividends,
when financially appropriate.

The management would like to thank the support and trust of shareholders, as well as the loyalty and efforts of the staff. Their

contributions have been indispensable for the Group’s development during the past years, and its prospects for the years to
come.

BALIRIR -

AARAREHE-_ZE—=F=A=+—HUEFEFH- ZIK%%%%T%EEEEE&E&HWXE’JFHIJ EYEERBREIRPAERE B
BRETEW WERMEAFERSBEHEENEE - 2 AHNETEH  2REEEZTERTH > THBEELHXBEE=-HEL
RRKERERRERGIHRBAEE - A - hEI (55 BT m RN AMER -

ERE  BNHENETSELSRER  FAETTRER ARIHHEE LT  EEETHERNEERREFEEE N ENTR
MWEEFR - EEEHRBREVXBERARAABEEAZARENHTEE  BIDEE - RMSHLEZORE  CEEK -

FEBEHRESRRER ZEZHBRENE - BMESVHEM LIS  HR2A  EMMREZFEREM  AEERTENBEEERE
EXEFPRRBYR - SEERBLRFMOEENSE  BRIMCEEDS AEFEESEER  BAMS - #HMERTEEHETER
WER - B EARBEG S BESESHNOTRIRE £ SHFHED®E -

BMRELAMSURRETHAROHE  BENTH  BASEEE  YRAEREEVBUREREADZRR

ERERLBRHANEBE BRI FREBLTETZE N - JUMNHZBNHARERERBRZERI TR HR

TSE Sun Fat, Henry #i#75%
Chairman i
25 June 2013 —E-—=FXA=-+HH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWEE D

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s operating profit was HK$31.6 million (2012: HK$25.4 million), which increased
by 24.4% from the prior year. Profit after tax approximated HK$24.5 million (2012: HK$19.4 million), which increased by 26.3%
from the prior year, while the Group’s turnover increased by 17.4% from the prior year to reach HK$477.4 million (2012:
HK$406.7 million). Earnings per share has increased from HK6.5 cents to HK8.2 cents, representing an increase of 26.3%.

As discussed in our Interim Report, we noted a stabilising property market and a gradual increase in completion rate of
residential properties. In Hong Kong, the cooling-down measures implemented by the Hong Kong Government has effectively
prevented speculative transactions and encouraged developers to build affordable “starters’ homes”. Expectation of the
eventual phase-out of QE3 and the end of low-interest rate period, as indicators of recovery of the global economy, will facilitate
a steady growth of the property market going forward.

As part of the continuous improvement, we have further invested to renovate our retail outlets, refine our product display
strategies and enhance the effectiveness of our display areas. This will enhance the utilisation of our shops in view of the
inflationary rental expenses.

WHOLESALE/RETAIL

Our wholesale operation recorded a significant growth of 31.2% and reported sales of HK$349.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$266.6 million). This is in line with the rise in residential property completion rate. During the year, we
supplied products to property development projects like Century Gateway, Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, One West Kowloon and
Argenta.

BE-Z-=ZFZA=Z1+—HLEE AEEHEGKEENN6EEBT(ZE——F  264E8EBT)  BEFIEIEE24.4% Mk
RIER N A245BE8BT(ZTE—Z2F 1948 EB L) BEAFHEEA26.3%  AEEBLEERAREFIEMI7.4%  E47748 8
BIL(ZZT——F 1 406.7AEH ) - BREF B 6.5 EFES. 28l » HEFIHEIEA26.3% °

MR HIREREIEL AEMETSEERE  EEEMERERT LT - EERTOETARERAZRDWEY EES - WRME
FREHEZERBMEEN [ LELR] - RERQEZSEH  mHEYXRFE-_GHELCRREREZIAE RMESRTASNNEAKENAE
MEDSFRER -

AEBEBEFIE  REARSTEEHNET TR  RZERRIIOER  BARIICENHERE - GLEETE - P EBERNEE
ke EAES EFRES -

iig
AEEZHBEBRESRARER  REFHEER31.2%  SEBAENEIM0.90EET(ZF——F : 2666 ABET) - BETEK
EBEA—E--EFA B/  BHEE  —Re ONBEREATHBHEER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWEE D

WHOLESALE/RETAIL (cont’d)

The performance of our retail segment dropped slightly to HK$114.7 million (2012: HK$126.6 million). Since the adoption of
various cooling-down measures, we noted an easing off in the secondary property market, which affects the demand for interior
renovation. In addition, to achieve better inventory management, we target a higher inventory turnover by offering promotional
discounts in our retail outlets.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) through the
adoption of a prudent financial management policy. The current ratio and quick ratio are 2.0 (2012: 1.7) and 1.1 (2012: 0.8),
respectively, while cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$71.9 million (2012: HK$33.5 million) as at 31 March 2013. The
Group’s gearing ratio (the ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital) reduced to 0.63% at 31 March 2013 (2012:
16.5%). The interest-bearing borrowings of the Group, including bills payable and trust receipt loans, reduced to HK$74.0
million (2012: HK$89.7 million) as at 31 March 2013.

During July to December 2012, certain executive directors, a company’s shareholder (who is also a relative to those executive
directors) and a former executive director collectively advanced non-interest-bearing loans of HK$36.5 million to the Group, of
which HK$35.9 million was settled during the year. As at 31 March 2013, the Group had an outstanding loan of HK$625,000
due to a former executive director of the Group recorded in other payables.

e EE(E)
AEEZEZEEBELARAD 4 TEERT RLFEEMTR(ZZ—ZF 1266 BHETT) - BRMAEBRETUR  —F9
EMSREBME  FEEAREBOFR - I RPEBRREFEEE  £2EEHRETTNEE  URSFEREX -

MBRERRABES

AEETHERERPEARANEB(HEDERXEBEER S DESTEZVBEERE  RILEREBHLESFIR2.0(=
E-CF AN RIAN(ZE-ZF:08) MRZE—=F=A=+—HZRLEBLEFEBYIARNIASEL(ZT——-% :335H
BET) MNIT-—=F=A=+—"R AEEEAGGELE (AFAERELEEERRRERANEMZLEE) TRE0LZ% (ZT——F:
16.5%) - ARE 2 BEREERLET4A0BERT(ZZ——F :80.7ABE L) HHEREZRBRAAQGRKEENRSE -

RZZE—Z—FLAZ+-AHE BETHTEE  —BARABRE(NAZSHTEENEE) L — R TE S EXRMASLEIRES6.5
BEEAINEEER - ASEEFANECEEEFISIEEETHNER RZZE—=F=-A=-+—8  A5ENENRBERE—FENH
FEEMFHIE ©EACLEBT -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWEE D

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY (cont’d)
Borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”) and EURO. The
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group. Assets under charged are the
mortgaged property acquired and certain bank deposits. Save for the rental commitment of our retail outlets and warehouses,
the Group has no other material commitment as at 31 March 2013.

PEOPLE
As at 31 March 2013, our workforce increased to 191 employees (2012: 185).

FUTURE PROSPECTS
The supply of residential and commercial properties is expected to boost in the coming years. We believe that an expansion in
construction projects is likely to be on the horizon.

We constantly stretch our reaches to various markets. Capitalising on our solid relationship with property developers, we are
extending our product supply for projects from ironmongery, sanitary ware and kitchen cabinets to deluxe furniture. While the
current furniture projects are relatively small in scale, we expect a promising growth in this operation.

“Well begun is half done”. Our proven performance in the PRC provides opportunities for us to collaborate with developers on
the subsequent phases of their construction projects. Having established a sound portfolio in Shanghai, we are gaining
opportunities of new projects in other cities in the PRC. While we shall uphold our service standard to maintain our competitive
edge, deluxe furniture and kitchen cabinet is gaining popularity in the PRC market. With this trend continues, we expect to see
our effort in cultivating this market will turn into a good harvest in the future.

MBRERRARBES (&)
ERERLBRRLEENTEUSTRETARN - ERERBIMIRENERR - FEMNEEAT BB ERETEHENR -
R-B-=£=A=1—8 BRTTEEHREANAEREN - AEEDWE M EXEAAE -

ANER
RoF-—=Z4=ZA=+—0 RMOBEIABEME101E(ZF— =4 : 185%) -
B2

EERBBYEZRERDRAREFEMN - HAEEREEB SHEBEM -

AEBRNHFRAHMTE  NEREE - FEATPNBREREG BT OE  AHANEEN  RABEREATRER HETRREM - R
UL E MR B DR PR - BERMBEHEETSEE T HMNER -

[FEFIR RN —+] - EEA - HMANKRABIEL,SE  ESRETEHEARERROKS - AEERAAE LEBESERIET
BBSEELR RERSARERNEMRTATRE - RMEESEERY - ®RIESFHANREE - BAHTERERMEEREOT LA
{BIE o WL THIG HEAEL - B B EURBIA RS A TR -
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Group Structure

 JE Y

“-“.i.i“-“-

Twinwood Venture Bonco Ironmongery
Limited Limited

Twinwood Venture RERESEM
Limited A
100% 100%
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REGISTERED OFFICE
SR

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS
MPREERTEEXME

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building
33 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

e

& IEE 33 5%
ERSEVN
16-1818

COMPANY SECRETARY
REWE
IP Fu Wa, Benthony ACA, CPA

S o

& I ACA, CPA

AUDITOR
BB

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

BEp B ETL
i

IR

RKFRET 12

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
RERXK

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

IP Fu Wa, Benthony ACA, CPA

Epe s
= ACA, CPA

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
ERAROBFETTRE

Tricor Abacus Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERBYERAR
BERT
EERER 28
SHEMER L2612

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
FMEHESRNBFETHAR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

LEGAL ADVISERS ON CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
HEREERZEERM
Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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LEGAL ADVISERS ON HONG KONG LAW
BREEZEERR

Pang, Wan & Choi, Solicitors

7th Floor, Chinachem Tower

34-37 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

TOREAERNTT
BB

T a8 34-37 5%
ERKNELE

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

NG

FEERBRLT

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

HEELBESRITARRAR

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

EMBRT(BEB)ARRAF

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
BRARIRTT

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

MR RITERA R

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
PR TR T (M) BRAE

Wing Lung Bank Limited
KERTTER AR
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing and
sale of architectural builders hardware, bathroom and kitchen
collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the provision of
construction services for developers in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year by operating segment is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
46.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors (the “Board”) has resolved to
recommend, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) to be held on 11 September 2013, a final dividend
payment of HK5 cents (as compared to 2012: HK2 cents) per
share for the year ended 31 March 2013.

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the final
dividend will be distributed to members, whose names
appear on the principal or branch register of members of the
Company in the Cayman lIslands or Hong Kong respectively
(collectively the “Register of Members”) as at the close of
business on 4 October 2013. The payment will be made on
16 October 2013.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

EFERENREBE T ZF=A=ST—HIEFEZRERE
ERMBWME

FERBEDREEHEDMN

ARBAZEBEBAREZER - SWBRR I EXBRERTBE
ARDHEBREDS 8 BEERBREMAREFEARKM

(TE) BB REREMEERTS -

RERRE DK
AEEAFE 2 EATBREOEZRALARBEN -

@S

gzg((E2e )R 2 ZF AT+ —BETZERERR
BERE(IERBEFAE) LR REBE_T—=F=/H
=t RLEFEZRERESREBI(ZT—ZF : 28{l) -

WA BCRA RRIBF Ag EIEHE - R BRI T =
Z-=FTANRLERBERE  BIARFRLRNEH=HES
EEEFEZIEZRRAMEKRREL DM (M TIRRAM]) 2
RER - mazREAERZE—=F+ A+ AR -

(A
AEEBEEARRREAFEZ RELDFBHAN I B RRME7 -

M BERRE

AEBEAFEZME  BERRBEDFTHAN Y RRM T
15
&S

ARRZBAFHIGHN I B MARME25 -
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$133,847,000. Under Section 34 of the
Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is available for distribution to shareholders,
provided that no distribution shall be paid to shareholders out
of the Company’s share premium unless the Company shall
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
110.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to encourage and to provide incentive or
reward to its Grantees improving the business performance
and let him/her benefit from his/her helping to contribute the
business success. Further details of the Scheme are
disclosed in the note 26 to the financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and the outstanding as at 31 March 2013 are as
follows:

As at

1 April

2012 Granted
R=B-zf
A-H

Exercised Cancelled

Ri T i

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Elkiilvikd

180,000 - - -

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
AFERE

200,000 - - -

Directors’ Report
EEERT

AR 2 18

RZE—=ZF=ZA=+—H  AQRZAIKEEEH 133,847,000
B RIEFSHEREVEEIME(ZETTFAEL]) - BHE
BRARE TR - ERIEAR AR —REBBREREEEN N
EIE - BAITRERE AR R Z MG EE TIRE -

IFEMBERE
REERARTEVRFECXEREEAGEREHINE10

BE HEIEERH

ARBARFEABEBERDEAEMKD - ARRHEEAHER A
REEASEBEREEERAEARFMD -

BT E
AAREEHBREE ((RRETE]) - B ESMAZALRR
SREEMHRBEH - UREFEBRE - DERSMGB R
BT 2 BB o KA 2 BB EIS WA 26 I -

REBRETECEOZBEREMN —F—=F=A=1+—HA#A
RITEZ BREFBEOT

Asat
31 March Exercise Exercisable
Lapsed 2013 Price  Grant Date Period
R=%-zf%
%M =ZA=1-H ke REAH TESE
(HKS)
(B7)
- 180,000 0814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
TE—E-fACttH 26 Janvay 2014
ZE-CE-ACTtRE
“E-mE-A=1+x~H
- 200,000 0.814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
“E—%-fA-ttB 26 Januay 2014
ZT-CE-AZttRZ
—Z-mE-A=15A
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cont’d) BRESHE (&)
As at As at
1 April 31 March Exercise Exercisable
2012 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2013 Price  Grant Date Period
R=B-Zf R=%-zf%
mA-H bdi i 8 %% ZR=t-H kE RLAH AT EEE
(HKS)
(B7)
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin 220,000 - - - - 220,000 0814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
HEREE TE—E-fACttH 26 Janvay 2014
“E-CE-ACTtRE
“E-WE-AZTAR
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 600,000 - - - - 600,000 0.814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
ABErE “E—%-fA-ttB 26 Janvay 2014
“E-CE-A-T4RE
Z2-MmE-AZTRE
Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Note 4) 600,000 - - - - 600,000 0.814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
PR (Fi5E4) TE—F-fACttE 26 Janvay 2014
ZE-CE-ACTtRE
ZE-ME-AZTRE
Other employess 4,600,000 - - - (470,000) 4,130,000 0.814 27 January 2011 27 January 2012-
EfbER “E—E-F-tHR 26Januay 2014
“E-CE-ACT4RZ
ZB-ME-AZTRE
In aggregate 6,400,000 - - - (470,000) 5,930,000
&y
% Notes: B &
g . 1) The closing market price per Share as at the date preceding the date 1) ZEERERDBHIZENETEAERO.8SHEIT
C_U on which the share options were granted was HK$0.85.
>® ©) The share options granted to the Grantees shall vest over 36 months ©) BFEBAZEREREREEABEABLEBSME @A GRERM
[ ] E commencing on the date of grant or 12 months after the date of grant E)RRF=+AEARNERE - Am - WERRAREES  HARSEEB AN
8 (as the case may be); however if the Grantee is an employee, he/she is SEZE -
O subject to his/her continued employment on the date of vesting.
|.|.|PA/ ) The above options granted are recognised as expenses in the profit or 3) FMEEEREC R BEREWE2A9MEZ ARG BEE - RIB
I loss in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy as set out in BRARERAMY - AD AR L BRENEMFBHIIRVERERME26 -
) note 2.19 to the financial statements. Other details of share options
5 granted by the Company are set out in note 26 to the financial
; statements.
(@)
(3 (4) Mr. YICK Kai Chung retired as an executive director on 24 January (4) SHREER_ZBE—=F-A-THERENTES -
2013.
2z
3
)
16
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (appointed on 21 June 2012)*
Mr. YICK Kai Chung (retired on 24 January 2013)

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.#

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic*

Mr. WAN Sze Chung*

* The re-appointment of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert as the executive
director was duly approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 24 January 2013.

# Independent non-executive directors who entered into contracts with
the Company for an initial fixed term of one year and thereafter shall
continue for further successive periods of one year, provided that the
Company may terminate the contracts at the end of each one year
period by giving the other party at least one month’s notice in writing
thereof.

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. LAU Shiu Sun and Mr. WONG
Wah, Dominic shall retire at the forthcoming AGM in
accordance with Articles 86(3) and 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 1 March 2000 and
continuing thereafter unless terminated by either party with at
least three months advance notice in writing.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10
December 2001 and will continue thereafter unless
terminated by either party by three months prior written notice
to other party.

Each of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of one year commencing on 8 September 2008 and 22
June 2012 respectively and will continue thereafter unless
terminated by either party by three months prior written notice
to other party.

Directors’ Report
EEERT

=
AEENZEENT -

WEELE

WHEMELEE

ARG E

BB E
HEEE(WRZE—ZFRAAZ+—BEZE)"
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PHBEAFHL

HEL LS

BB

ENEENTEREERANTEFERN T =ZF A THRETZE
RARFAF R ERIEASAE -

# RBUFRTESE - REEARREIT LT AR -FZEEAL - £
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (cont’d)

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company has entered into any service contracts with any
member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing connected
transactions” below, no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Under the terms of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
adopted on 9 September, 2010, the Board of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any full-time employees or
executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the scheme may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
3,330,000 share options have been granted to the directors
and their associates since its adoption. As at 31 March 2013,
1,770,000 share options have been lapsed and there has
been no exercise of share options since their issuance.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and long positions of the
directors, chief executives of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(*SFO”) which have been notified to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and long positions which any such director or chief executive
was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) and have been recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
have been notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long position in shares and underlying

shares

Directors BE

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) #5750 4 (M E1)
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2)  #i#7(& 5 4 (MiE2)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) ST LA (H35E3)
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) SRR AL (KFE2)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 2Bk

Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Note 4) SEREE (H4)

Note 1: The interests in shares of the Company is held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse
are the beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in shares of the Company is held by Universal
Star Group Limited, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon
Kit, Kevin and their family are the beneficiaries. Included in the
total sum of share options granted, 300,000 share options are
granted to Ms. TSANG Lai Ping, Maria, one of the founders
and chief cashier, who is also the mother of Mr. TSE Hon Kit,
Kevin.

Note 3:  The interests in shares of the Company is held by New Happy
Times Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. Included in the total sum of share options
granted, 360,000 and 350,000 share options are respectively
granted to Mr. TSE Sun Ming, Almond, a senior manager, and
Ms. LAU Mei Fong, retail director, who are also the cousin and
sister-in-laws of Mr. TSE, Sun Po, Tony.

Note 4: Mr. YICK Kai Chung retired as an executive director on 24
January 2013.
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Equity Percentage

derivatives of issued

Personal Corporate (share share

interest interest options) Total capital
[

fTEIR HE BT

BARES DEEE (BBRRHE) a5 BRAZLA

- 18,598,647 180,000 18,778,647 6.25%

- 54,151,244 300,000 54,451,244 18.13%

- 21,835,771 910,000 22,745,771 7.57%

- 54,151,244 520,000 54,671,244 18.21%

- - 600,000 600,000 0.20%

7,899,675 - 600,000 8,499,675 2.83%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (cont’d)

(i) Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
Director ===
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 5) s ¥75= 504 (KHisE5)
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 5) i ¥/ 504 (KHisE5)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 5) SETE L (MEEs)
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 5) SRS AL (MRES)
Note 5:  Such share is held by Bache Hill Group Limited (“BHGL”).

(iii) Argo Corporation Limited (“ACL”)

Ex
ZRR S (L 6)

Director
Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Note 6)

Note 6: ACL is a company controlled by a close family member of Mr.
YICK Kai Chung, a former director of the Company. The
purchase transactions were carried out at terms mutually
agreed between the two parties. Mr. YICK retired as an
executive director on 24 January 2013.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their
associates had, as at 31 March 2013, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

EERRORERRG 2ER (&)
(i) Negotiator Consultants Limited (TNCL])
Number of ordinary shares held
BFEEBERKA
Personal Family Corporate Other

interest interest interest interest Total
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- 1 - 1 1
- 1 - 1 1

M35 : Bache Hill Group Limited ([BHGL])#4& ZZ 15 »
(iii) ERECEERAR (MM
Number of ordinary shares held
BEEBEREA
Personal Family Corporate Other

interest interest interest interest Total

BAREZR RikER AEER HiifEm e
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 56, is a founding member of
the Group and the Chairman of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in the trading of
building materials. He is responsible for the planning of the
Group’s overall strategies and the overall management of the
Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 54, is the Managing Director of
the Company and joined the Group in 1979. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in the trading of
building materials and is responsible for the retail business of
the Group. Mr. TSE also assists in the strategic planning and
management of the Group. He is a brother of Mr. TSE Sun
Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Group.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 45, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LAU was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 10 December 2001. He is responsible for project sales.
He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly
Baptist College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. YICK Kai Chung, aged 54, joined the Group in 1979. Mr.
YICK possesses over 30 years of experience in building
materials industry and is responsible for overseeing major
customers and wholesale business of the Group and
products sourcing and technical support. He retired on 24
January 2013.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 33, is the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. Mr.
TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Commerce. He is responsible for internal
information technology development, the launching of the
furniture business and the marketing of products distributed
by the Group. Mr. TSE is a nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony,
the Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 63, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as a director and Vice Chairman of the
Company on 21 June 2012. He had established his
reputation in the industry and had a wealth of experience in
brand building, new product development and structuring the
management of the Group. Mr. TSE is the cousin of Mr. TSE
Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company, and
the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company.

Directors’ Report
EEERT

EEREREBAEZERE

HITES

IR E > 665% - AEBZAIMKBRARR ZEF - HLE
REEMHBEZHEREABOFLER - RABLIAEE 2B
RIS ERERT(E-

WHERE  645% ARBZEFHLE R AENFMAR
£ - Eﬁi%iﬁééﬁﬁﬂf’i%ﬁﬁkﬁﬁ@%¢%%%ﬁ BEAEE

TEE - WAET B AREZKEIEFEILERE - AN
SETFEWIELEEZIS

BBIEL 4558 R—NANEAFMARER - BIEER T
—¢+:H+EIZ%§EF’%$ ARTEE AEEAHEE - RE
“ANZFEERBBREAZ(MHEREEE)  MEEEEL

By o

HRCRFEL 645 R—NENFMALRERE - FEAENRBZEMN
MEHEEBI0FLER AEEEAKEIZRTP M EXRL I
BEEMRBEENE -RERZ—=F-A-+HBERE-

SUEGSEL - 335 RARRIBIESAKE  R-TZEMFMA
RERE-HEERENZREZRE TREHREE LM - Hik
SRBERTABERAMRERIIE  BMEBZRBRAEERL
WEMZMGHERE HELEDARRESLEERNFELLZE
e

HEEEE 635 RAEEAEIMAZ— RZE—ZFH
T —HEZERALRAEEREERF  BREFEXEABEVEE
WHREI M EaRAERAESASEEEEAR T EHEELE
B AEARRRESRERWFFELEZEN LKA
BIERREIBHE G E 2R -

D/ Eu} m}“ﬂ >

4
1
Gl

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 | 1831 T#RER AR —T—=F4#

21




EIE=

[ |
Create Value

BE

Steady Growth

N
N

Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P., aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in January 2000. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Master’s Degree of Business Administration
from the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the
University of Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a senior practicing
director of Wong Lam Leung & Kwok C.P.A. Ltd.. He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of International Accountants. Mr. LEUNG is
an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accounts in England
& Wales, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, the Society of
Chinese Accounts & Auditors, the Chartered Management
Institute and the International Institute of Management.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972
with Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in
Economics. He was appointed as a director and general
manager of Hongkong Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The
Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has
been actively involved in garment industry and IT business for
the last few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson, aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 27 September 2006.
Mr. Wan obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Master of Education (Counselling & Guidance) with University
of Newcastle upon Tyne and a Second Bachelor’s Degree of
Law with Tsinghua University. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. WAN is a director of training and consultancy
firm specialising in corporate and personal training while he is
also teaching with various universities.

Senior Management
Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 56, joined the Group in
1982 and is a director of one subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
AU possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
materials industry and is responsible for project related sales
and marketing activities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 59, joined the Group in 1979. Mr. LO
is a technical director and is responsible for overseeing
provision of technical support for bathroom collections. He
possesses over 30 years of experience in selling building
materials and is a licensed plumber.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

Senior Management (cont’d)

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 39, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. CHANG is a general manager of project sales
division. He possesses over 20 years of experience in building
materials industry and is responsible for project sales.

Ms. LAU Mei Fong, Cherry, aged 41, joined the Group since
1996. Ms. LAU is the retail director of the Group and is in
charge of overall shop management. She possesses over 10
years of experience in retail business. Ms. LAU is a sister-in-
law of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company.

Mr. LO Cheuk Hang, Teddy, aged 36, joined the Group in
2004. Mr. LO is the chief operating officer of the kitchen
project division of the Group. He possesses over 15 years of
experience in kitchen collection business. He graduated from
The Open University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’'s Degree
of Arts in Chinese Humanities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 20183, the
Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief
executives.

Long position in shares of the Company
Name of Shareholder

Happy Voice Limited
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concemning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Happy Voice Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are
as follows:

FERFRHED
REEAR  AEBZEREBLTFAGREBIREEEA D LN
T

Purchases RIBEE
The largest supplier =AM ER 16.9%
Five largest suppliers combined AAHEEER 44.6%
Sales HEH
The largest customer RAEP 10.5%
Five largest customers combined AAREFP AR 33.3%

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The related party transaction as disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 in
respect of rental expenses of approximately HK$2,460,000
paid to Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”) also
constitutes a connected party transaction. NCL is a
subsidiary of a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE
Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The Stock Exchange
has granted conditional waivers to the Company from strict
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the directors including the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of the
business of the Group and in accordance with the terms of
the agreements.

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 in
respect of purchases approximately HK$10,934,000 paid to
Argo Corporation Limited (“ACL”) also constitutes a
connected party transaction. ACL is a Company controlled
by a close family member of Mr. YICK Kai Chung, a director
of the Company. The purchase transactions were carried out
at terms mutually agreed between two parties.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong (“GTHK”) was appointed as
auditors of the Company on 13 September 2007. On 2
November 2010, Grant Thornton International announced the
appointment of Jingdu Tianhua Hong Kong as its new
member firm in Hong Kong.

On 19 November 2010, it was announced that GTHK has
concluded a merger agreement and will practise in the name
of another certified public accountants practice. The
Company received a resignation letter from GTHK resigning
as auditors of the Company effective 19 January 2011.

As the Board would like to continue to use the services
provided by a member of Grant Thornton International in
Hong Kong, after consideration by the Audit Committee of
the Board, Jingdu Tianhua Hong Kong was appointed as
auditors of the Company effective 19 January 2011. Jingdu
Tianhua Hong Kong changed its English name to Grant
Thornton Jingdu Tianhua on 8 December 2010.

On 3 July 2012, Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua resigned as
the auditors of the Company. The Company subsequently
appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers on 18 July 2012 to fill
the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Grant
Thornton Jingdu Tianhua and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. The
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers was duly approved
by the Shareholders at the AGM on 24 January 2013.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board #ft%xZ%=
TSE Sun Fat, Henry /&

Chairman L

25 June 2013 —E-=—FXA=+HH
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Corporate Governance Report

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintain its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and
reporting system with high transparency for the Company’s
operation has been in place. Disclosure could also be made
timely and accurately. At the same time, the rights of
shareholders can be treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible Board,
which is comprised of individuals with high qualifications and
relevant experience. This can ensure that the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good corporate
governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control systems, so as to cope with the Group’s development
strategies and increase the shareholders’ value.

The Board has complied with the code provision listed in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2013
with the exception of the code provisions A.1.8 and A.4.1.
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules stipulates the code of good
corporate governance (the “Code”), and two levels of
recommendations: (a) code provisions; and (b) recommended
best practices. It also states that issuers are expected to
comply with, but may choose to deviate from, the code
provisions. The recommended best practices are for
guidance only. The Company opted to comply with
mandatory code provisions and provisions on recommended
best practices that are considered by the Board as
reasonable and appropriate.

Under the code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its directors. Currently, no insurance cover has been arranged
for directors since the directors take the view that the
Company shall support directors arising from corporate
activities.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term. Currently, non-
executive directors are not appointed for a specific term of
service. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.1. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation at
AGM under the articles of association of the Company. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
Code.
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TRERRE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules sets a required standard against which directors must
measure their conduct regarding transactions in securities of
their listed companies. The Company has adopted the Model
Code as its own code of conduct regarding director’s
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the directors have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

THE BOARD

The Board comprises six executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The names of the
directors are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (appointed on 21 June 2012)
Mr. YICK Kai Chung (retired on 24 January 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Biographies of all directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 21 to 23.

The Board of the Company assumes responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company, setting the objectives of
management, monitoring the performance of management,
overseeing the management of the Company’s relationship
with shareholders, ensuring that a framework of prudent and
effective controls is in place to enable risks to be assessed
and managed, and setting the Company’s values and
standards.

When the Board delegates management and administrative
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances
where management is to report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitment on behalf of the Company.
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THE BOARD (cont’d)

The task of the management and staff of the Company is the
successful implementation of the strategies and directions as
determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply
business principles and ethics, which are consistent with
those expected by the Board and Shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The independent non-executive directors help to ensure that
the Board can make independent judgment efficiently. The
independent non-executive directors possess appropriate
professional qualification among them, some possess
expertise in accounting and financial management. Each
independent non-executive director has confirmed to the
Stock Exchange his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and has also submitted an
annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his
independence. Three independent non-executive directors
are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the
Board.

All directors actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies and business directions of the
Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular and
12 non-regular Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To
ensure that the directors could obtain all related information
for performing their duties and responsibilities, documents for
the Board meeting were supplied to directors for their
consideration before the meeting according to the regulations
set out in the Listing Rules and code provision.

Throughout the year, the Company director’s attendance was
as follows:

Attendance

Board General
Executive directors meeting meeting
Mr. Tse Sun Fat (Chairman) 16 1
Mr. Tse Sun Po (Managing Director) 16 1
Mr. Lau Shiu Sun 10 1
Mr. Tse Hon Kit, Kevin 12 1
Mr. Tse Sun Wai, Albert 8 1
Mr. Yick Kai Chung 7 1
Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Leung Kwong Kin, J.P. 10 1
Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic 10 1
Mr. Wan Sze Chung 10 1
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THE BOARD (cont’d)

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
directors to include proposed discussion issued in the
agenda of regular Board meetings. At least 14 days’ notice
are given in respect of regular Board meetings. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Management provides the Board and committees with
sufficient, adequate and timely information which is complete
and reliable and which enables directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their
duties and responsibilities as the directors. Management
provides adequate explanations and information to the Board
to enable directors to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before them for approval.
In addition, the Board and each director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

Minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”)
and are available for inspection by any director. Minutes
record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the decisions reached.

All directors have free access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and that applicable laws and
regulations. Moreover, all directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances in the
furtherance of their duties and for the associated fees at the
Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt
with by holding a Board meeting set up for that purpose
pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting. Only
independent non-executive director who, and whose
associates, have no materials interest in the transaction
concerned will be present at such meeting. Directors’
concerns must abstain from voting on any Board resolution
and will not be counted in the quorum.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive Officer”
set out in Appendix 23 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly
separated roles and are performed by different individuals.
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Chairman of the Board, is
responsible for managing the Board. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony,
Managing Director, is responsible for the Company’s
operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been
clearly defined and the written terms of reference have been
set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@  Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all directors are properly briefed on matters to
be discussed at Board meetings;

(c)  Ensuring all directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner;

(d)  Ensuring that the Board works effectively, discharges
its responsibilities and discusses all key issues in a
timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary settles and
approves the agenda for Board meetings on the
Chairman’s behalf, taking into account any matters
proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda;

(M Providing effective communication with Shareholders
and that views of Shareholders are communicated to
the Board as a whole;

(99 Ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are in place;

(h)  Giving each director an opportunity to express his views
at Board meetings, encouraging all directors to fully
contribute to the Board’s affairs and ensuring that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Company; and

(i) Facilitating the effective contribution of all directors, in
particular non-executive director, and building
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
(cont’d)

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board, his
responsibilities are as follows:

(@  Providing leadership for the management;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the
Company’s strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

(d)  Providing all such information to the Board as is
necessary to enable the Board to monitor the
performance of Management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s
relationships with its stakeholders;

) Putting in place programmes for management
development and succession;

(99 Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as
well as disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h)  Discharging such duties and authorities as may be
delegated in writing to him by the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29
September 2005. It is comprised of two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah,
Dominic.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

On 27 March 2012, the roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee were refined for compliance to
current standard and better corporate governance. The roles
and function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

@)

To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objective;

To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration for non-executive directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

To ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for executive
directors. The committee should have access to
professional advice if necessary; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its
discussion results and recommendations after each meeting
and is provided with sufficient resource to perform its duties
and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or
other professional advice.

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee met twice
to review the remuneration of the executive directors and
senior management of the Company. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its
review.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was
as follows:

Remuneration Committee Members Attendance

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 2
(Independent non-executive director)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 2
(Independent non-executive director)

Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Executive director) 1
(retired on 24 January 2013)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive director) 1

(appointed on 24 January 2013)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is
currently comprised of three independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LEUNG
Kwong Kin, J.P..

On 27 March 2012, the roles and functions of the Audit
Committee were refined for compliance to current standard
and better corporate governance. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)
Audit Committee (cont’d)

)

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The audit committee should discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences.

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with
the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm
nationally or internationally. The audit committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

1o act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits, and any matters the auditor
may wish to discuss (in the absence of management
where necessary);

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management
to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

() where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

(1) to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report)
prior to endorsement by the Board;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in this provision;
and

to review arrangements employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the 2012
annual report and interim report of the Company, discussed
the effectiveness of the internal control with external auditors,
and reviewed the annual budget for auditing fees.

In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed
the annual report for the year ended annual result on 25 June
2013, and proposed to the Board for their approval.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in
the committee’s meetings. Throughout the year, the Audit
Committee met 8 times. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its
review, and related recommendations were adopted by the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was
as follow:

Audit Committee Members Attendance

Mr. Leung Kwong Kin, J.P. 8
(Independent non-executive director)
(Chairman of Audit Committee)

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic 8
(Independent non-executive director)

Mr. Wan Sze Chung 8

(Independent non-executive director)

All directors acknowledge their responsibilities in preparing
the financial statements. As at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors are aware of any uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. As such,
the directors have prepared the Company’s financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Responsibilities of external auditors to the financial statements
are set out in the auditors’ report of the 2013 annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March
2012. It is comprised of two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The roles and function of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@  review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.
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TRERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont’d)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its
discussion results and recommendations after each meeting
and is provided with sufficient resource to perform its duties
and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or
other professional advice.

Throughout the year, the Nomination Committee met once to
review the Board and senior management of the Company.
Discussion results and recommendations have been
proposed to the Board for its review.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was
as follows:

Nomination Committee Members Attendance

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 1
(Independent non-executive director)
(Chairman of Nomination Committee)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung 1
(Independent non-executive director)

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive director) 1

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 March 2013, the following audit fee
has been incurred by the Company:

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Others

Total

EEZ8T (H)

REZES (M)
REAZAENTRERRAEFSERT R RRES - LR
HERARUBITEABEREE SR RBENB AR ER LK
HYEER -

REERN REZEGLHT-REH  URTARFAEEER
BREEAR - GEMNTRERMEANCEREESES

REERN  ZBERBNHFERNAT

REZEERE R #

mESAE 1
(B IEHITES)
(REBZBEXRF)

BB A 1
(B IEHITES)

WIE L E (ITESR) 1

BT BN <
REE-F-=6=A=+-RLFEN  KRATEENTEY
B

HK$'000

FHETT

FEROKBE TR BT 7,300
Hip 205
H) 7,505

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 | 18317 ER AR —T—=FF#



Corporate Governance Report

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group. The system is
for the interests of the shareholders by protecting the
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group.

For implementing internal control effectively, the Company
shall review the following five elements for internal control:

(i) Overall control

The Group has established a comprehensive
organisation structure and deployed suitable personnel
for the efficient implementation of policies. Adequate
information is also provided. Executive directors and
the senior management are granted appropriate
authority to execute the strategies, policies and targets
of the Group effectively when risks are within control. At
the same time, the Board and senior management shall
communicate the values and code of conduct of the
Company to all the staff, for maintaining honesty and a
high level of morality. In addition, all directors actively
participate in the affairs of the Board and the work of all
Board Committees.

(ii) Risk assessment
The Group determines annual operation targets,
financial reporting targets and compliance targets in
accordance with the development strategies set by the
Board. This is to ensure that the Group operates within
risks that are of tolerate and reasonable level.

The Company shall review the risks faced by the Group
with external auditors regularly, so as to set a firm base
for the Board to review the effectiveness of internal
control and report to the shareholders on issues in
relation to internal control.

(iii) Control activities

The Group carried out control activities comprising a
diverse range of policies and procedures, include
conducting reviews of actual performance, reviewing of
performance reports, checking information processing
in transaction, performing physical controls, analysing
performance indicators and dividing and segregating
duties amongst different people.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)

(iv) Information and communication
The Board and senior management shall communicate
the importance of control to the staff, enabling the staff
to understand that control must be implemented. The
staff shall regularly report any information related to
operation, financial and regulation to the Board and
senior management.

The senior management shall provide the latest
information on the Group to the Board and the Board
Committees regularly or under material circumstances,
in a view to have sufficient preparation for any risks.

In order to lower risks, the Company actively
communicates with, and considers opinions from, all
external parties, so that it is able to take appropriate
actions in face of risks.

(v) Monitoring

The Company shall continuously assess and properly

report the performance of the internal control system.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’
RELATIONSHIP

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is
a key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based
on the information and provide opinions to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together
with its financial condition, are disclosed in the 2013 annual
report and the Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive notice of the AGM
and extraordinary general meeting (together the “Meeting”) by
post. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda,
resolutions proposed and a voting form. All shareholders,
whose shares are registered in the register of members, are
entitled to attend the Meeting. Shareholders who cannot
attend the Meeting can appoint their proxies or the chairman
of the meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy form
enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it to the
Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules, all votes of shareholders at the meeting will be
taken by poll. Procedures for demanding a vote by poll,
together with the notice of the meeting, have been enclosed
with a circular despatched to the shareholders. The
procedures shall be read out at the Meeting by the chairman
of the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’
RELATIONSHIP (cont’d)

In addition, separate resolutions for actually separated issues
shall be proposed to the Meeting for the approval of
shareholders.

The AGM is considered as an annual significant event of the
Company. The AGM provides a precious opportunity for the
shareholders and the Board to exchange constructive
opinions. All directors and the senior management shall
attend the AGM. Apart from attending the AGM, the
Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each
Board Committee to attend and answer question at the AGM.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
reflecting mostly the current practices of the Company for
communication with its Shareholders. Such Policy aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
Company’s shareholders, in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large, are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are
able to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow them and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company. For the purpose of this Policy, reference
to the investment community is intended to include the
Company’s potential investors as well as analysts reporting
and analysing the Company’s performance.

The Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and
the investment community, and will regularly review this Policy
to ensure its effectiveness as follows:

(@ Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports), AGMs and other general meetings that may be
convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”) and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on
the Company’s website.

(b)  Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and the investment community shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this Policy
shall be directed to the Company Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(cont’d)
Shareholders’ enquiries

(@)

()

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at
any reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be
provided with designated contacts, e-mail addresses
and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable
them to make any query in respect of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

The Company has only one class of shares and the
Articles of Association of the Company set out the
rights of our shareholders.

Shareholders have right to receive corporate
communications issued by the Company.

Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus
Limited (“Tricor”) may notify us from time to time
through Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate
communications.

Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive
background information in a timely manner concerning
the matters to be decided at general meetings and they
are well informed of the rules, including the voting
procedures, that govern general meetings.

Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules
prescribed by the Stock Exchange from time to time,
shareholders have right to participate and vote in
general meetings. Any shareholder not attending a
general meeting can give proxy to vote on his/her
behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to our shareholders
together with the notice of meeting.

Shareholders have right to raise questions at general
meetings.

Shareholder(s) may request to include a resolution in a
general meeting pursuant to Section 115A of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32).

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cont’d)

9.  Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the AGM will be taken by poll. The
chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder
present in person or by proxy will have one vote for
every share held. A shareholder which is a corporation
will be present in person if a duly authorised
representative of such shareholder is present at the
meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to
use all his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the
same way. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be
a resolution of the meeting. After the closure of a
general meeting, the poll results will be published on
the Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and the
HKExnews website at www.hkexnews.hk.

10. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key
corporate governance decisions. Sufficient time is
allowed for shareholders to consider the candidates
being nominated before the general meetings.

11. The Company ensures that votes cast are properly
counted and recorded. Voting results are verified by
independent scrutineers and announced in a timely
manner after the closure of general meeting and posted
on the Company’s and HKExnews websites.

12.  Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on
the relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting
as required by the Listing Rules.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a director

The general meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal
venue for shareholders to meet and exchange views on
the Company’s business with the directors and the
management.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director at an AGM, the
shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination
which shall be given to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office within the 7-day period commencing
the day after the despatch of the AGM notice (or such other
period as may be determined and announced by the directors
from time to time).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
E. BON HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 109, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

: 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013

: 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—HFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Surplus on revaluation of properties held for
own use

Tax effect relating to the revaluation

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company during the year

(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 53 to 109 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Dividends attributable to the year

EE S
SHERA
EH

H At Wz
1T
REERR

5 s
MIEER

MEER - FHE
BRBE IR AN F
B F 52

RNF A E B FERF

Hith 2 HE W 28

BESINETE MR
ERER

SNk E e &

B ZHEZE

FEHRMEERE  BRHEE

FARBERIGFE
2HBESF

RENARRINEE BIEER
FTE 2 BRERNE R
(AR ER)

— EARHE

FIARERE 2 S

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks THET FAExT
5 477,371 406,673
7 (298,660) (242,771)
178,711 163,902

5 2,997 1,142
7 (84,007) (74,852)
7 (66,113) (64,788)
31,588 25,404

35 141
(1,162) (847)
8 (1,127) (7086)
30,461 24,698
11 (5,949) (65,331)
24,512 19,367

582 285

30,069 11,011
(4,620) (1,410)

26,031 9,886

50,543 29,253

14 8.2 cents &1l

6.5 cents 7Bl

13(b) 18,018

EE3E109 AMMIE R FHEEMHRRA—FED °

9,009
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBERRE

As at 31 March 2013
R—ZE—=%=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEK 15 170,694 141,493
Deferred income tax assets RIEFIBEE 24 2,906 2,273
Trade, retention and other receivables JEUERR - TEUIR BB A %
L Ath & U R 19 15,815 15,205
189,415 158,971
Current assets REEE
Inventories PEACy 18 139,917 185,055
Current income tax recoverable AUk B 718 4,582 2,193
Trade, retention and other receivables JEUBRR - IRUIIREE A %
H b e UK 19 90,275 111,163
Restricted cash ZRRFIRE 20 2,867 -
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEY 21 71,907 33,457
309,548 331,868
Total assets HMEE 498,963 490,839
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R AR T AR

As at 31 March 2013
R-ZE—=%=A=+—8H

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Receipt in advance
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
N E

Director

BF

The notes on pages 53 to 109 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes
B 5T

i
KARAEEGERS

B 25
(i 27

BrEn

afE

nRBRE
e BRI B A 3K 22
TR FRIE 22
a3 23
EHNAAE

FERBEE
EEBIAEE 24

HaE

HEEREEE

REEEFE

HEERRBAE

TSE Sun Po, Tony
HIE

Director

BF

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
30,030 30,030
296,916 255,382
326,946 285,412
35,881 48,342
38,216 46,989
73,971 89,719
5,450 6,509
153,518 191,559
18,499 13,868
172,017 205,427
498,963 490,839
156,030 140,309
345,445 299,280

E53E 109 AMME R FHEE MHFERRA—FED °



Statement of Financial Position
B F& AR R 3R

As at 31 March 2013
R—ZE—=%=A=+—~H

2013 2012
—E—=Ff —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FExT TFHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NG 16 90,917 90,917
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries NG E 17 80,196 65,167
Other receivables H b FEUK 19 19 44
Current income tax recoverable AT E FE 36 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERHRSZEEY 21 269 65
80,520 65,266
Total assets HEE 171,437 156,183
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to equity holders of the KATIFREEEGES
Company
Share capital R& 7N 25 30,030 30,030
Reserves & 27 133,847 34,758
Total equity HrER 163,877 64,788
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H b FET R 22 2,005 109
Current income tax liabilities EHRIEAE = 1
Due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A T3R8 17 5,555 91,285
7,560 91,395
Total equity and liabilities HERRAAE 171,437 156,183
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BE) FE 72,960 (26,129)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERABEE 163,877 64,788
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
A I E
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 53 to 109 are an integral part of these 53 E 100 BN B EL A M EREAN—3BH °
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=-A=+—HLFE

Share
Share Share  Revaluation Merger Capital  Exchange  Statutory option  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total

Ba REE EREE  AUREE  AAEE ERRE  ieRR BREEE  REET Ll
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKE000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TEL  TRr  Tex  Ter  TEr  TEx  TEr TR TET TR

At 1 April 2011 R-Z--F¥MA-H 30,030 31,231 64,246 6,979 2,896 2,176 261 341 134,657 272,817
Profit for the year EFRR - - - - - - - - 19,367 19,367

Other comprehensive income  Efti 2 E K3
Exchange gain on translation &85 £7%

of financial statements HBERNELZR

of foreign operations - - - - - 285 - - - 285
Surplus on revaluation BRNFER YR

of properties held for own use - - 11,011 - - - - - - 11,011
Tax effect relating to the B ke

revaluation - - (1,410) - - - - - - (1,410)
Total comprehensive income 2 F &5 - - 9,601 - - 285 - - 19,367 29,253
Share-based compensation IARRIA S TR BN 2 508

(note 26) (BizE26) - - - - - - - 1,360 = 1,360
Dividends (note 13(a)) G EIEE) - - - - - - - - (18018 (18018
Appropriation to statutory reserve & BB (M5 27)

(note 27) - - - - - - 76 - 762 -
Transactions with owners ~ EfiEEZRZ = - - - - - 762 1,360  (18780) (16,658
At 31 March 2012 RZE--F=f=1-H 30,030 31,231 73,847 6,979 2,896 2,461 1,023 1,701 135,244 285,412
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 April 2012

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Exchange gain on tranglation
of financial statements
of foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation
of properties held for own use
Tax effect relating to the
revaluation

Total comprehensive income

Transfer of share option reserve
upon the lapse of share based
compensation (note 26)

Dividends (note 13(a))

Appropriation to statutory
reserve (note 27)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2013

The notes on pages 53 to 109 are an integral part of these

GEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HLFE

Share
Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger Capital Exchange Statutory option  Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  earnings Total
BE  BROHEE ERREE  AHRE EARE ERRE OLERG BRERE REER CH
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn THEr TEx TEx TEx  THEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TE=n
R=E--—§MA-A 30,030 31,231 73,847 6,979 2,896 2,461 1,023 1,701 135244 285412
FERA - - - - - - - - 24512 24512
Hit2E KR
ARRINER
HBRRHELZR
- - - - - 582 - - - 582
ERMEEflG
- - 30,069 - - - - - - 30,069
BftizHEYE
- - (4,620) - - - - - - (4,620)
smbaes N e N e R LGN
SRR 2 BN 2 5108
KB EERRERE
(Fir3E26) - - - - - - - (125) 125 -
2 (Bt 13(@) = = = = - - - - (9,009) (9,009)
EEREAE (27
- - - - - - 109 - (109) -
RfpEZRE T T T T T U B TR
R-B-=§=A=1-H 30,030 31,231 99,296 6,979 2,89 3,043 1,132 1,576 150,763 326,946

consolidated financial statements.

E53E 109 AMME R FHEE MHFERRA—FED °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—HIEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_fF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FitE TET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities BETBHNRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEEE /(A RS 28 84,799 (27,896)
Income tax paid ENHIE (10,019) (1,606)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating ResEBESY /(FTA) FRE
activities 74,780 (29,502)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHNHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BE R (8,292) (11,210)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BEMEREZ
plant and equipment PS8 28 168 =
Interest received B U F = 13 141
Net cash used in investing activities REEZBHAERS (8,111) (11,069)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings ERATSRIB 30,730 7,000
Repayment of borrowings BBER (9,087) (5,990)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRI R B (1,162) (847)
(Repayment of)/net proceeds from bills payable FERERERETRIEER
and trust receipt loans Z2F(EE) FieeE (35,334) 35,177
Proceeds from the loans from certain executive REETHITES - —BBRE
directors, a shareholder and a former k—%& ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ%$2%ﬁ£
executive director Z e 31(b) 36,544 -
Repayment of the loans from certain executive 1;L7a¥¢ﬂﬁ§$ C—BRE
directors, a shareholder and a former R—BAMPITESE 2ER
executive director 31(b) (35,919) -
Increase in restricted cash R HIZR £ 3% 0 (2,867) -
Dividends paid B E (9,009) (18,018)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities gt &5E®) (FrH), E4ZER S (26,104) 17,322
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBReESEYFEM
cash equivalents GRA) 40,565 (23,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year &I & KIS EEY 21,088 43,984
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents R4 FESEEWEN (BE),/
Wz (762) 858
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBPL RIS ZEY 60,891 21,088
Analysis of balance of cash and BeRFELEBEYZERDNT
cash equivalents
Cash and bank, on hand and short-term bank RITIER - FHEEAS K
deposit RHRTER 21 71,907 33,457
Bank overdrafts RITES 23 (11,016) (12,369)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRBERBEEEY 60,891 21,088

The notes on pages 53 to 109 are an integral part of these £ 53 £ 109 B WM B UL F4r 6 M IEHmER A —
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is 16th-18th Floors, First Commercial Building,
33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. Its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
importing and sale of architectural builders hardware,
bathroom and kitchen collections and furniture in Hong
Kong and the provision of construction service for
property developers in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon
Holdings Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings, which
are carried at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

B 5 R AR MY

—REHR
BHITERERARA(AAA D) ARFEEHSEMK L2
BREMERA - HFEM PSR ik & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & H £ Z & ¥ 1 2 A H B iR #8218 158 33
FE—EEKRNE16-18 - EROHRBEBBEXIMER
AR ([HEAFT]) 2 =R ET ©

ARBEIZXBREEER - ENBRARZEZXBAA
EEBNBEOREERERS 8  BEREBREM
ARFEREARKLME ([ E ) BYEEREREEZER
7 o

BRRAGRBN  ZERCUBHRRUBTEY - ZFHS
BB/ REN-_TE—=F B - THRAEEESHETE -

TREHEMSE

REZEHFAMBHREARBZ EEZRAEEHIINT -
BRREHAN  ZEFERENAE2RFEERRA -

2.1 HFEPEE
BHBITIERER AR ZEEMBHRETIBEE BN
WELR ([BBMBREER )RR - NERE MER
REBELRAS R AR YORAE i RE2
FrEMEHRR  ZESAELHRRTIRAAE
5I|8R -

REEEVWHEHREEANGARMBREFAERETE
AREETABREEEERARE AR ZEMAIE
HHET - 5 RS EHE SRR SERR RARE
RAMBREAMS BEAZHE - RIE4PHRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R EE S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

There are no new and amended standards
and interpretations to existing HKFRS that
are effective for the Group’s accounting
year commencing 1 April 2012 that could
be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

New standards and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1
April 2012 and have not been early
adopted:

Amendment to HKAS 1

R ERE 1 REFTA

FTEETBEHE (8
21 RREEME)
BHBERREL
@ ARERAHE REETRR LR

VEEMEASRE _T——_FHA—BRHBZ
SR FREER CBRTERYERE LR Z AT
MEETERINRE RS HARERKE

=77
ARE o

BN =T — M A — BRIk BB
45K A L 3 AR SRR BB R B
5T

Effective for

HKFRS 9

BRI EERIE 9%
HKFRS 10

BRI B REERIE 1058
HKFRS 11

BB BREERIE 1158
HKFRS 12

BB BREERIE 1258
HKFRS 13

BRI B REERIE 1858

accounting

period

beginning

on or after

RT5 BBz 2%

Bz Est B AN

Financial statements presentation regarding 1 July 2012
other comprehensive income

BAE MR ERE 2 M BERKRES —E——_F+tH—-H

Financial Instruments 1 January 2015

TRTHE —E—hF—H—H

Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013

iRe R —E—=%F—H—H

Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013

R = HE —E—=%F—H—H

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013

WENHEMER s —E—=F—H—H

Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

DhEE —E—=F—H—H

The Group has commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards but is not yet in
a position to state whether these new
standards and amendments to standards
would have a significant impact to its results
of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR MY

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 TEESHEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

22 MBATA
221 445 5RH

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

MEBEAREAREEEREZEVBREERER
MAEER(BEFRENER)  — KRB
BEBREENORAE - AT EAEE T EES
A—EBE BRATREXALBRNEERR
BOGFERZEDTEE -

MBARBENEEREAREZALEES
BtARR - B AR B EGEEILZBRELS
N

SEARRRNRS BHRER W TAY
e REENRRKREEEARFTRZZNE
ST AEHE - MEBRANSAERRERTE
fEHERE - URREAKBERANBRNTE —
B o

222 BIMKIEER

M8 A R E AR AMRBET R - KATE
ERENEREERAE - HBARNREAAR
N AR S K ECRA SR -

AR R HR B B IR AR HA PO B I A R R AR A IR
@ RANEE Y M RR MR B REER B
EUBEHRERTRIREARFEE (BEEE) N
tREE - RISEE B R FREERERR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R EE S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@  Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK
dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2

TREEESE(H)

2.3

2.4

Pt g
REDMBRBAEFEEEARERHBOAI RS
—EMH AWM E - BB RRE R E BIEHL R
ERENRITES  BEDEEREFHEED
EE

b=l

HEmE

(@) DIEERZFRH
AEEGEERNMIBEREMIIABINZE
BREMENTIZLEHERFANER 2 ([TEE
B¥]) - ZaMBRRUBITEY)  BLTAN
REAMNEEERAEENZ2SIEE -

b) XRHRAEH
SINERZRARZHIABEFAEBNEERH
MEZTMEDNEEE BENEXFELN
BE 3 e ak K B IR IA RS IASMESHERM BB B &
Ko B {8 DA SR 4% I R4 8 A O [ 3 Wi I B 1R
FiRa 2 EKERTER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR MY

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

FESTBRBE (K)
2.4 SMEBRE(E)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@ assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at
revalued amount. Property, plant and equipment,
other than leasehold land and buildings, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being the revaluation value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ significantly from
that which would be determined using revaluation
values at the reporting date.

2.5

() HKEERA
MEEEBEEFEETRNMEEENER(E
PRARHBERIRCENER)NEERM
BHRRIZAT A ERE A2 EH -

@ ESH2INBBERARANEERAE
BB IR R B H R0 T B R

b) FHEa 2 EME NI ZE
THERRE (REUERTTRERS
AMERN RHPENAROM EL
BORT - W BB AR S 5 B B E
EIE) i ]

(© FiE A e E R EEE RN
R R -

M BERRE
HETRBFAEMKEER - KHEELhERF
SN WK BB R R EBERAATN R T E R RFHR
BEEBAK -

HELHEBFREES P BERARAE[BEE(BIE
HEAZELEERZEGRZIRAINE  BHER
SOREER) IR - HEL WEEFEITHEM -
EREAREEERNREA 2 EHEETEELEERE
H o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R EE S

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

TREEESE(H)
25 M¥ - BERREGE
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Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
assets previously recognised as an expense, in
which case the increase is credited to the profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as
an expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating
to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of unexpired

and buildings term of lease or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms
improvements or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures ~ 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade, retention and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R EE S

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

2.9

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.11 Trade, retention and other receivables

TREEESE(H)
2.11 BUWERRR - BUWRE R H B YR

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due
from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade, retention and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and bank
overdraft. In the consolidated statement of
financial position, bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(@  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date
in the countries where the Company and
the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are not
provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries because the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

2.19 Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted:

(@ including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

(b)  excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

(¢) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

2.19

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBERME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 ETEA
Defined contribution plans TREHFKEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

2.19 Share-based compensation (cont’d)
Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

2.20 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources Will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as finance cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts and returns. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its estimates
of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@  Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

(b)  Contract revenue
A construction contract is defined by HKAS
11 as a contract specifically negotiated for
the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable,
contract revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
stage of completion. Contract costs are
recognised as cost of sales by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are
likely to be recoverable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBERBEGE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 2.21 W ARER (&)
(b)  Contract revenue (cont’d) (b) ARHKA(E)
Variations in contract work, claims and ERIE RERZBES2ES  FHATLHEE
incentive payments are included in contract P EN ] et B 2 BET A G RMA -

revenue to the extent that may have been
agreed with the customer and are capable
of being reliably measured.

On the consolidated statement of financial REEBEZEMBIKARRETHE RN
position, the Group reports the net contract REEXBE -EEELEZKAMEERER
position for each contract as either an asset wEANOREE R ER) BBERMNK - &6
or a liability. A contract represents an asset HOBREE  BAEEERE -

where costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings; a contract represents
liability where the opposite is the case.

(c)  Finance income (c) HIBHaz=
Finance income is recognised using the BTG W e PR A B RR A AR -
effective interest method.

(d)  Dividend income (@  ERFKEm
Dividend income is recognised when the IS 781 it 2 1 MK HR R TE ) AR R i E PR R o
right to receive payment is established.

2.22 Leases 2.22 A8
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks w8 &R A 2 RE 5 ke KRB e H AR - Al
and rewards of ownership are retained by the DER/KERE - REBKLEHEZNHRIE(NRKRE
lessor are classified as operating leases. A A WERE) (B iR 1R ) RIS AN A B &%
Payments made under operating leases (net of TEERRT N -

any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution 2.23 RESDE
Dividend distribution to the Company’s MARBRRADMHOR SR EERRABRFKES
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the (aniE A ) Bt/ 8 BA R A AR &= B R 2K 1A R ) BA 1S R 3k
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements NERFZBIE -

in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@ Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis
points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit for the year and
retained earnings by approximately
HK$11,000 (2012: HK$446,000). The 50
basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

(b)  Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
with most of the sales transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. However, foreign
currencies are required to settle the Group’s
purchases from overseas suppliers. The
Group does not have a hedging policy in
place.

At 31 March 2013, if EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$1,226,000 higher/lower (2012:
HK$1,017,000 higher/lower), mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of EURO denominated cash
and bank deposit, trade payables and
borrowings.

3

B EREE

3.1 HEKEREZE
AEBEETRPEERE T8 RK (BEF =R
RAERR)  EERBRERDESEAR - AEBHE

BRERERETEHRAGTNSETS - LBRE
HAREMBRANEETNEE -

@  FEmE
AEBHBAREEREREANLY BN T
BHXRES  AEENAXEREEEERE
SBRITER - RIPMNXET2AEEME
E/AESHAEERN RS REN AR -
REEMEZT2EReRMEE BBIEHK
AEBEH R FHEER -

MR-T—=%=A=1+—08 " “HEMBAEM
BEEBTIEZIBRT - BFEXLEZ TFF50
HE - BLoAEENFERZMNERFRAR
b/ EANE 11,0008 75 (Z T — =4 : 446,000
BIL) c50EEM EZ /T REEMRREIERE
FHEE T FERESHIENASEAEERE
§j] o

(b)  SME/E
AREBTIERBEBLE  BABOINHERS
BB TTAEE - BRKEIMEER B E MR
Bl (s FA SN o AN S B 4 AT ST SR R -

E-ZE—=F=ZA=1+—8 BEBTILET
BB/ FH{ES% MAAHMEREFETE
Bl 67 5 03 I 838 0, R 4> 491,226,000 78 T8 (=
T——4F N, 841,017,000/87T) C T2
AR BRE BT AEMNR S RIBITER - &
5 BR TR R AE FREE LE MY INE W35S TR FT R -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©)

()

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to bank balances, trade,
retention and other receivables. Bank
balances are deposited with banks with
sound credit rating and the Group considers
the credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The general credit terms allowed range from
30 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2013, the
Group does not hold any collateral from
customers. 9% (2012: 6%) of the total
trade, retention and other receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and
33% (2012: 37%) was due from the five
largest customers of the Group as at 31
March 2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of
bank balances, trade, retention and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group has no other
financial assets carrying significant exposure
to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the shorter and longer terms.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group held cash
and cash equivalents of HK$71,907,000
(2012: HK$33,457,000) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.

B 5 R AR MY

3 MEBEERBER(E)
31 MBAREEEE(H)

(c)

(@

1= B
AEBZEERREIZHRTER  BIRE
A AR B R R E A MR AR - SRTT A BR
TR EERIFEEFNFRZRT  HAKER
REERBIRK -

AEBREEAMEREERFNEPRS - &
AEEBEAN  EEREERNTPOTE
TEERE - 8% AEESREERBUK
R MAREZRRRRY TEK -

AEBETZEEHR-—HBRNFI0HENAR -
RZB—=F=A=+—H AEETEFH
BEEZEE MR-—ZT—=F=ZA=+—A2
MBIEIARIR - FEUIREE R E b FEULER A+ 9%
(ZE—ZF :6%) REAEENZAEF -
}33% (ZZFE——4F : 37%) RAAEBAKRE
)E- °

NEEMBRRART  RREERRARITE
B FEURRR R - FEURER B R B E At FE UK 2 B
HE - AREYEEMEREEMTEREER
[ o

TRENIE [
AEBEHERRERBHRZRBESHR
VAREIR AN 62 B 4 45 SR 038 2 (1 DA = A2 2 2

RZBE—=F=A=+—H ' A5EHEEES
FBREEEW71,907,0008 (=T ——F:
33,457,000 % 7T, - T8 HA AT BB EE AR 3R & 7 A A
EEREERE o
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BF 355 ¥ 2R B &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’'d) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(d)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012,
the remaining contractual maturities of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows, are summarised below:

As at 31 March 2013

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

— unsecured

— secured

As at 31 March 2012
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

— unsecured
— secured

As at 31 March 2013

Other payables
Due to subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2012

Other payables
Due to subsidiaries

R-E-=f%
=f=+—-H
JETBR A R E b FE 3R

i

— EER
— BEH

RZZE—=F
=RA=+—H
e BR R E M A 3K

50

— B
— Bl

R-B-=%
=ZA=t-H
LG

B LR ZFE

R-Z—=F
=A=1-H

H it B

ERHBAR KA

B S R B B PR (4
31 HMBEREERE (&)

@  wEEERE ()
RZE—=F=A=1t—HAK=_ZF——-F=A
=+—H AEERAQARZRRARURE SN
EVHBBEZRTERNIBEMENT :

Group
5H
Total
contractual Within In the
undiscounted 1 year or second In the third After
cashflows  ondemand year to fifth year five years
BENARER —5R RE=EZ
ReRE HEER EZER FEER BENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL T THL FTHEL THT
35,881 35,881 - - -
44,007 44,007 - - -
31,742 5,679 5,679 15,973 4,411
48,342 48,342 - - -
77,420 77,420 - - -
12,818 1,398 1,398 4,195 5,827
Company
N
Within In the
Carrying 1 year or second In the third After
amount  on demand year to fifth year five years
—FR RE=EZ
REE HEZER EZFR FRER BFEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TR TR TET
2,005 2,005 - - -
5,555 5,555 - - -
109 109 - - -
91,285 91,285 - - -
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B 5 R AR MY

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd) 3 BiEKEE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 MEERETEREZE(HE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (cont’d) (d) EEEEE ()

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
“Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”,
if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”),
which gives the lender a clear and unambiguous
unconditional right to demand repayment at any
time at its sole discretion, a borrower shall
classify the term loan as a current liability in its
balance sheet, as the borrower does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$24,957,000 (2012: HK$11,006,000) were
classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2013.

Some of the Group’s loan agreements are
subject to covenant clauses. As at 31
March 2013, the Group did not fulfil a
covenant clause as set out in a loan
agreement for a credit line of
HK$61,000,000 (2012: HK$35,000,000),
whereby the Group should settle 30% of its
trade receivables through this bank. As at
31 March 2013, the Group had drawn bills
payable and trust receipt loans of
HK$13,269,000 (2012: HK$8,365,000) and
unsecured bank loans of HK$9,837,000
(2012: Nil), totalling HK$23,106,000 (2012:
HK$8,365,000). With this breach of the
covenant clause, the bank is contractually
entitled to request immediate repayment of
the outstanding amount of HK$23,106,000
and cancel the undrawn facilities. The
Group had obtained a waiver of this
covenant clause from the bank subsequent
to the balance sheet date.

In addition, as at 31 March 2012, the Group
also did not fulfil the current ratio and quick
ratio as set out in another loan agreement
for a credit line of HK$40,000,000, of which
the Group has drawn bills payable and trust
receipt loans of HK$7,590,000 and bank
overdrafts of HK$4,630,000, totalling
HK$12,220,000. These borrowings were
subsequently settled during the year ended
31 March 2013.

MizE : RIRBARBESH [MBHRER 225 — BERA
HBEEREKEBREGRZAERERZ ] 58
EXRmBEHEER 2 BERERER( &
B ) - 45T B IR E M BA TR 2 IR AR R AT B
REEMBEERENR  AERABREERRER
A ERERDERRBDARE  RERERAL
REEBGHEFAIEEEEZHRELERE
HEZEEPTZ@EA - Bt R=ZF—=F=A
=SEt+t-—B AKEBERTERERHBLS A
24,957,000 ;t( = & — = £ : 11,006,000 %
7) ' ERREMBARRRAD B RTEARE -

AEBBOERBEMBEROEX - R=ZF
—=ZF=ZA=1+—0 AEBIRFE—HE
s P A B8 61,000,0008 T (= — — 4 ¢
35,000,000 70) BMEEEREE 2 ZLKX
EFREAEBAEBZRITEELEIIRR
230% - R—_BE—=FE=A=+—H A4%H
EHRAZCENZEREAKEBEERAH
13,269,000/ L ( = T — = £ : 8,365,000
JL) » ANk IR 1T B 309,837,000 7t (=
T—— &) %5 23,106,0008 T (=
— Z4F : 8,365,000/ 7L ) © H R ER R E
30 SRATA] 4B It B SR BN B B 3B 52 £ 23,106,000
BILAENZERRECEME RSB AZEEHE
£ - AEBME R E BB & ZHIEX BT
MSH R -

N RZTB——F€=fA=+—0 &A&E@z
B RREESLERTATE D —DER D #
BT 8% /A 840,000,000 8 TR X EEBE 28
T MALEEHAZENEZEREFTREE
7,590,000 7T » H0_E 4R 1738 37 4,630,000 7
JT v 4% /512,220,000 7T c ZEEREEEE
REBEE-_Z—=6=ZA=+—HILFEEE-
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R EE S

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus
net debt.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from

2012, was to maintain the gearing ratio within
50%.

Total borrowings (note 23)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 21)

Net debt
Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio
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2013 2012

= —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
73,971 89,719
(71,907) (33,457)
2,064 56,262
326,946 285,412
329,010 341,674
0.63% 16.47%




Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the
Group evaluates the ageing of inventories, their
historical sales pattern, their subsequent utilisation
and other factors and compare the carrying value
of inventories to their estimated net realisable
values. The identification of inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business require the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventory and impairment provision in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

4.2 Revenue recognition for construction

contract

Customers may, during the course of project
implementation, make “variations” to the Group
and request the Group to alter the scope of work
or perform additional work on top of the terms
and scope of original construction contracts by
way of “variations”. Variations in contract work are
recognised as revenue to the extent that it is
probable that they will be approved by the
customers and they are capable of being reliably
measured. Disagreements may arise in relation to
the fees, costs and scope of variation of work. In
the event the Group and the customer failing to
reach agreement on the rate at which the
variation work is determined, contractual disputes
with our customers may arise, and the Group’s
results of operation, liquidity and financial position
may be adversely affected.

4

B 5 R AR MY

E-PN - RS -

AEBRBEBELR A MEREHF GG RAE - 8
RERCEBAEZBERATHRKEFANHE -

AEBERBEL AT RER - GHEFERREERD
HERERAN HEERABR T —EMERFEZER
EEREA BB E RO GE RRRNT

41 BREERE
RAEBREFHFEMRREERK  ~5EE2
EFENRR  HEEYRLE BREZCERBAIKE
HER YhHREFEZFEEREGFEREE B
NEERTABSEBBIET 2EAEES ZIED HER
RiGsr e WEHBERAGFGEER EEBFER
BEEREBERZFERERAZGFAIEL 2 BERE -

42 ERNIRZERERR

BEPAAETRETHERASBERL [TIZRE | &
T [IREBF | BAERAEEEREZIRER
M2 ER E BN TEHESRMEIN TR - EFALN
TIREREERFEZTFIE R STt ERFERR
BERBNE KARERZHEANESERNEED
I o A AREEESRERTRETIRE 2 WEZEK
K BARELBREANAUY  AEBZEEXEE 0
UM BARRATEXZNEEATE -
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont’d)

4.3

4.4

Valuation of leasehold land and building
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. In making
its estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of leasehold land and
buildings performed by external professional
valuers by using the open market value approach.
If the Group used different valuation techniques,
the fair value of the leasehold land and buildings
may be different and thus may have an impact to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred income tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Management’s
assessment is regularly reviewed and additional
deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred income tax assets to be
recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

4

B RS hEH R H B (%)

4.3

4.4

HELRETFT 2 MG

AR ENREREABUDENERTISZANERE
& o FEAEH AT - AREZEhIMNERXAERDA
ARTEEAEE LB TETHENER - A
SERATRzZFELTN  AHET W RBF Z2AR
BEHET K MEA2HAKRERAGITE -

BiIE

i 1R ] BE /A R SR B AR Bt g A A $R SH T IR B 18 - RIME ST
T8 IR B FE 4% e R B P B IR S 1R AR o BEE F] T HERR
ZEEFHREENEFECEEHFLEEHE =2
ARIRRT RIE RO M8 SRBOR A R SR 7% 22 BE SR S 7
o AEBTEREMERLE 25T - BWRE A
REFERTURH - LRI ERER IR EE - RS
REIMEENIREE -

AREBAEDERHEHMATIA - 1EEBIRE B
AEREARHE - ABRF Rt B BAMEE K&
Ko MZFERZRRRBERBINKNLHE 22
B RBRERBFEELARAE 2 HIE 2 BIAR
BRI
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B 5 R AR MY

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5 HEXEERHMWE
2013 2012
—E—=%f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Revenue =
Sale of goods EmEE 464,597 393,154
Sale of services RS SHE 12,774 13,519
477,371 406,673
Other income Hitlh =
Net foreign exchange gain P 3 IR A 4R 1,954 1
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E¥% - EE R&E 2 A 168 -
Others HAt 875 1,141
2,997 1,142
480,368 407,815
SEGMENT INFORMATION o EE R

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-
makers. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the
Executive Directors for the purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance.

The Executive Directors evaluate regularly the
performance of the Group’s business from its
wholesale, retail and interior decoration activities. The
wholesale segment derives its revenue primarily from
importing and the wholesale of architectural builders
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture
to contractors, property developers and dealers. The
retail segment derives its revenue from importing and
sale of architectural builders hardware, bathroom,
kitchen collections and furniture through the Group’s
retail outlets. The interior decoration segment derives its
revenue from the provision of interior decoration and
construction services, primarily in the PRC.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs.

ARRNTEE(RTEF) AAREY EELBRFE -
ERECRENTESENASEERRTLLAR
B2 | REEESH -

HTESEHNTGHAERE U TEREAREEKLZ
RE -HEXBRATEREEDRAAER VEER
ARHEFHEEERS T8 BEXRBREM TE
EBWRARETEFBAEE TEEMENREERER
T T8 BEREBREM  ERRERBZWAKREE
ZRABERHERRE FEERS -

AEFERBEVBRELENFESREERED BHEZRK
R EMBERE 2 MR E BT ImE ER I E 2 HE—
B o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)
Segment profit exclude finance costs, income tax and
corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment.

Segment assets include all assets but deferred income
tax assets and corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarters.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment.

Reportable segment revenue AEHRZHINEF 5 S
from external customers
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AER 2 D EEF (FE)

Bank interest income RITH S WA

Depreciation and amortisation IEMTE B EE R
of non-financial assets

Provision for inventory BRFERE
obsolescence

Reportable segment assets AEHZ S HEE

Additions to non-current FENERBHDEE
segment assets during the year IRE

Reportable segment liabilities AEHz S HBEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

R EE S

7 EEM ()
SWHRFLTREABERA - B RFEEBERER
EEHBRABMAREAMD B2 OFWEHEREI M «

DB

DHEEREMBEE  HITREELERBREENNRIFE
ERBRERNZEDMIBREIZ2EBEE  ZEET
ZRBNEBEE -

DHMEETRBELCHBEEARFER R BINMEM EE
DRZBEED 2 EEALE -

2013
—E-=F
Interior

Wholesale Retail decoration Total
Eiig 2 ERHEE &ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FTExT FTExT FTERT
349,912 114,685 12,774 477,371
20,266 25,889 (1,587) 44,568
(4,865) (1,961) (1,369) (8,195)
(1,824) (402) (12) (2,238)
194,384 60,652 17,806 272,842
4,305 1,759 4,607 10,671
37,881 25,189 9,256 72,326
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 6 oEER(E)
2012
—T——F
Interior
Wholesale Retall decoration Total
B =€ EANE(E =
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
Reportable segment revenue AR 2 BN P A Eh e
from external customers 266,599 126,655 ¢ 1 3519 77777 406673
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ARz HEmEF] () 13,794 23,779 (1782 85791
Bank interest income BT BIWA 5 = 1 6
Depreciation and amortisation B ENE R
of non-financial assets (65,321) (2,829) (299) (8,449)
Provision for inventory BETEEEG
obsolescence (1,785) (651) - (2,436)
Reportable segment assets AERzHHEE 245,913 70,607 15,982 332,502
Additions to non-current FENIERBDBEEZARE
segment assets during the year 6,584 1,750 2,601 10,935
Reportable segment liabilities AERzHEEE 60,749 28,189 7,897 96,835

7
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Revenue from
external customers

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 6 oIWER(E)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating AREBEAEREEDBETENEREBGZATBREK
segments reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures TEEHRHEEERENT ¢
as presented in the consolidated financial statements
as follows:
2013 2012
= —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THT
Group revenues =0 [T E=S 477,371 406,673
Reportable segment profit ] FE 3R 2 9 SR AR i 7] 44,568 35,791
Unallocated corporate income KAk B R RS - 43
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEz R %ER (12,980) (10,430)
Finance costs, net BSER R (1,127) (706)
Profit before income tax BB B A=A 30,461 24,698
Reportable segment assets A fEIR 2 D EPE E 272,842 332,502
Deferred income tax assets R IBEE 2,906 2,273
Other corporate assets HEthae R tEEE 223,215 156,064
Group assets EEEE 498,963 490,839
Reportable segment liabilities AERZ DEEE 72,326 96,835
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIBAE 18,499 13,868
Borrowings = 73,971 89,719
Other corporate liabilities HEmartXaE 7,221 5,005
Group liabilities EEEE 172,017 205,427
Geographical information & & 2 5 K& #

Non-current assets

HIEFHE FREEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z-=% —E-CF 2= T F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TET THET
Hong Kong (domicile) BB (EBEEME) 444,753 378,060 171,884 145,144
PRC HE 32,618 28,613 17,531 13,827
Total & 477,371 406,673 189,415 158,971
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 6 EER(E)
Geographical information (cont’d) ZRibEZ2IHNER (&)
The geographical location of customers is based on the ERMEUBERBRXNERMELEME  FRBDEELZ
location at which the goods were delivered. The WU BRI RZEAEZERNUE -
geographical location of the non-current assets is
based on the physical location of the assets.
During the year, HK$49,960,000 or 10% (2012: RAEE 0 49,960,000 T8k 10% (=& ——4F : 29,028,000
HK$29,028,000 or 7%) of the Group’s revenue was PETTEk 7%) B B ER R B HE B TS B —HANE S o
derived from a single external customer in the wholesale
segment.
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BHAXSE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) B ITREA=H (MiEE9) 50,983 50,736
Auditors’ remuneration* Z AR & * 7,505 930
Cost of inventories (note 18) FER A (HiEE18) 287,004 233,732
Depreciation (note 15) E (B3E15) 11,967 11,289
Operating lease charges in respect of land and T MEF 7 EEHELT
buildings 45,410 43,776
Provision for inventory obsolescence BETFERE 2,238 2,436
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E %% - BE &R EE % - 20
Provision for impaired receivables BRI EEE 5 -
* For the year ended 31 March 2012, the amount primarily * BHE-_Z——F=A=1+—"HILFEZEBEERARRRIAERXR

represented auditor’s remuneration charged by the predecessor
auditor, Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua (“Grant Thornton”), prior
to its resignation. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the
amount mainly represents auditor’s remuneration for the year
ended 31 March 2012 charged by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the auditor appointed in July 2012 to fill the casual vacancy
arising from the resignation of Grant Thornton, of HK$5.3 million
and the auditor’s remuneration of HK$2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

ZETERE (B8) et E5AT ((RE D ERER 2 RBEER -
R-ZF——FtAH ZEEESBRKEEMEBAEZELAR
RRAZEE  NEHEABRBREMEEZBREZR BE-F
—=FZA=S T HUEFEZESREEIRRERBUKERFMER
MBE_F-—F=A=+—RLFEZIRBEMHNLE.3FE%
TRBE_T—=F=A=T—HULEFEZZEAME2EEE
T e
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R EE S

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET

Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
— wholly repayable within 5 years
— not wholly repayable within 5 years

Total finance costs

Finance income
Interest income

Finance costs, net

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

)

Salaries and allowances, including directors
emoluments (note 10)

Share-based compensation (note 26)

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

8 MBEM FHE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT THETT
B 5 A
RITIEFFE
—EENFER 1,056 726
— ERFRNEE 106 121
M ERAE 1,162 847
ik L6
S ON (35) (141)
BEER - FH 1,127 706
9 EBIFAZH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
e o2t BRE=HE (5FE10)
48,867 47,657
AR 32 A5 s B 2 508 (P 2 26) = 1,360
FE R 2,116 1,719
50,983 50,736
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B 5 R AR MY

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10 EEREREEAEZHE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s (a) EEREREBAEZHMH
remuneration
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or ENRKENARREELSREEAB ZME AN
payable to the directors and senior management TS ¢

of the Company are as follows:

2013 —E—=fF
Pension
Salaries, costs —
allowances defined
Directors’ and benefits  contribution Share-based
fees in kind plans compensation Total
e 2HR RERNK MR AF
i ik BEMFE fRztal b P &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR
Executive directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) — #i#75% (£5) 150 1,125 15 - 1,290
TSE Sun Po, Tony HAE (EERLHE)

(Managing Director) 150 1,340 15 - 1,505
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin ARG 150 1,065 15 - 1,230
LAU Shiu Sun 21485 150 1,430 15 - 1,595
TSE Sun Wai, Albert ! AR 150 1,100 11 - 1,261
YICK Kai Chung 2 HRR? 142 770 12 - 924
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. PREA T+ 108 - - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic BE 108 - - - 108
WAN Sze Chung BB 108 - - - 108

1,216 6,830 83 - 8,129
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)

10 EEREREBEAEZHE ()

EIE=
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N

& Retired as director on 16 September 2011.

No director has waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31

March 2013 (2012: Nil).

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s EEREREEASZEHM(HE)
remuneration (cont’d)
2012 —E——fF
Pension
Salaries, costs —
allowances defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution  Share-based
fees in kind plans  compensation Total
Eo =i RTERM PARRAD 32 A+
EEHS REMH G2 W2 A A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TR FHT THT
Executive directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) — #i#75% (£5) - 1,127 12 40 1,179
TSE Sun Po, Tony HHE (EEBLE)

(Managing Director) - 1,184 12 44 1,240
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin ARG = 1,004 12 49 1,065
LAU Shiu Sun 21485 = 960 12 133 1,106
YICK Kai Chung 2 HRR? = 1,064 12 133 1,209
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie ® s = 792 7 - 799
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. PREA T+ 108 = = = 108
WONG Wah, Dominic BE 108 - - - 108
WAN Sze Chung REE 80 - - - 80

296 6,131 67 399 6,893
1 Appointed as director on 21 June 2012. 1 RZB——FR AT BBEERESF -
2 Retired as director on 24 January 2013. 2 RZT—=F—A-+MHAREES-

3 RZF——FAA+AAREES -

REBE-_ZT—=F=-A=1t"HILFE AIEBEERN
EXRERERS M (ZT——F : 8\) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include five
(2012: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the remaining two individuals for
the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances
Share-based compensation
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

The emoluments are within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

B 5 R AR MY

10 EENEREEAEZHE (B&)

(b) EEEEFMAL
AEBRAFENRANERTMAL  BERAE (=
T——F :=ZR)EF ZZFEFZ2HEERERNA
oA HBHERMBALTHE-_T——F= A
=+—HIEFEZME0T ¢

2012
—ET——F
HK$’000
FHET

AR K2 2,704
VAR 32 A5 S M 2 kI8 160
SUE R RE & 24

2,888
e F Ty E

Number of
individuals
ANEL

2012
—ET——fF

1,000,000 7T 8k A T -
1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 47T 2
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R EE S

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 BIEMAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of ERFER IR ANEE 2 (G EER S FE165% (==
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable — = 1 16.5%) Z B EKEFTHE o BIMEE 2 BIE T IR E i i#E
profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has A ERMNERAE o

been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for

the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEn FHTL
Current tax KEEH

Hong Kong Profits Tax BAMNEB
— Current year — RNEE 6,055 4,783
— Under provisions in prior year — FEFRETR 263 -
PRC Corporate Income Tax PEMEFEREH 253 -
Total current tax NFERRIBRE 6,571 4,783
Deferred taxation (note 24) ERER (FHEE24) (622) 548
Income tax expense BIERI X 5,949 5,331

AEEARBRBEAG AN ZHERBRERATE 2B EM
AEZERBBRIEEMT

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using tax rate of
Hong Kong as follows:

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Profit before tax BT AT A 30,461 24,698
Tax charged at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) HHIEZET L 16.5%
—E——F 1 16.5%) 5t E 5,026 4,075
Under provisions of deferred tax not recognised — LAfE 4 EIRIE T IBEHESE (4 F4E
in prior year = (480)
Under provisions of current tax not recognised AR BB IER R R %5
in prior year 263 =
Income not subject to tax BT B U A (106) (140)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRAMEB B8 & A 1,068 1,033
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 1 F BABT4FE & R R T 155518 (1,353) (107)
Unrecognised tax losses REERZ BIAEE 1,147 1,415
Effect of different tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries RE B AR SHEE=ZR
R (96) (401)
Tax relief of current tax HIEER = (64)
Tax expense for the year REFFBELH 5,949 5,331
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d) 11

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.5%
(2012: 21.60%).

The decrease is caused by a change in the profitability
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

The tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income are as follows:

B 5 R AR MY

BLIERF X (8])

TR INEFEEREA19.5% (ZF——4F : 21.60%) °

i)

MEBREMNE R R 2 B A S E

=

ZE D R ERNAE

X o

AREMmEEKEERED 2 BRI HIAT

2013 2012
== —T——F
Before After Before After
tax Tax tax tax Tax tax
BRBial BIEXH BBl BrEipl  BIEZH [iN7ECS
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER FTERT TR FBT FBT FHT
Exchange gain on translation # & 85M /581 753k &K
of financial statements HEN =8
of foreign operations 582 - 582 285 - 285
Surplus on revaluation of B A E b e (FisE24)
properties held for own
use (note 24) 30,069 (4,620) 25,449 11,011 (1,410) 9,601
Other comprehensive income  E i 2 & Y 25 30,651 (4,620) 26,031 11,296 (1,410 9,886

12 ARFRAEEEGERR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a profit of HK$108,098,000 (2012: loss of
HK$1,103,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2013.

KR FE T A & EAE = F 8 15 & %) 108,098,000 T (==
—— 4% :1,108,0008 TE ) YERARREHBE-ZT

—=F=HA=t - RLFEHBHRRALRE -
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R EE S

13 DIVIDENDS

(@) Dividends declared and paid during the

(b)

year

Final dividend in respect of 2012 of HK2 cents
per share (2012: in respect of 2011 of
HK3 cents)

Interim dividend in respect of 2013 of HK1 cent
per share (2012: in respect of 2012 of
HK1 cent per share)

Special bonus dividend in respect of 2011
of HK2 cents per share

Dividends attributable to the year

Interim dividend of HK1 cent per share
(2012: HK1 cent)

Proposed final dividend of HK5 cents
per share* (2012: HK2 cents)

13 RE
(a) REFEEBRIKBEZKRE

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
T —FKRERE
BE2BL( =T =4
—E——FRERE
FAR 3B 6,006 9,009
—ZE——FIHEHRE
BEABL( T4
ZEF7HERE
1B 3,003 3,003
T ——F 75 RIA IR S
Bz 27 = 6,006
9,009 18,018
(b) FALTEEZRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$000
FE T T
HFHARR BB AR 1 L
(ZF——F 184 3,003 3,003
R ARER B ZMR 5B
(ZZT—=F : 278l) 15,015 6,006
18,018 9,009

A final dividend of HK5 cents (2012: HK2 cents) per
share amounting to HK$15,015,000 (2012:
HK$6,006,000) has been proposed by the directors
after the reporting date. The proposed dividend, subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, is not
reflected as dividend payables as at 31 March 2013.

REEE% EFCRHEERBREERSBIL(=T
— =4 2ll) - BIRELEAH150150008 (=R
—Z% : 6,006,000/7L) c RZF—=F=A=+—H -
SRR B (B RN RTREA® L) LMRB A
FERIR S, -
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (thousands)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2013 is the same as the basic earnings
per share (2012: same) as the conversion of
potential dilutive ordinary shares in relation to the
share options issued by the Company would have
an anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per
share.

B 5 R AR MY

14 BREF
(a) EXK
ERERNEMNZEERE - DRAREINEEEGR
FBRARFEEAND BT MR 2 T -

2013 2012

= —F—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TAT

ARTRIFAE AT 24,512 19,367
BEITERRRE 2 htE

FHE (TR 300,300 300,300

(b) %

AR ERERAR BT ZERESE EEEEY
ARHERERNGFNAEAEREELE  HHE-ZT
—=F=-A=t-—HUFEEREEEFNETRE
KM —B(ZFT—=F: —8)
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Group rEH
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
(note) improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH
RETF B £E
(HE) HEEWELER & RE HRIR A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR T THET T THT
Net book value REFE
At 1 April 2011 RZZ——FMA—H 111,735 15,847 1,925 108 780 130,395
Additions i - 7,369 624 - 3,217 11,210
Depreciation (note 7) e (E7) (3,059 (7,483 (687) (60) - (11,289)
Revaluation Eff 11,011 - - - - 11,011
Exchange difference EXZE 186 - - - - 186
Transfer [ - 3,997 - - (3,997) -
Disposal e - - (20) = = (20)
At 31 March 2012 iy s e =] 119,873 19,730 1,842 48 - 141,493
Additions i = 10,471 34 = = 10,812
Depreciation (note 7) e (fE7) (3,419) (7,772) (735) @) - (11,967)
Revaluation ELE 30,069 - - - - 30,069
Exchange difference EXZR 103 108 76 - - 287
At 31 March 2013 R-Z—=F=A=t+—-H 146,626 22,537 1,524 7 - 170,694
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=F=+—H
Valuation & 119,873 - - - - 119,873
Cost B AR - 63,710 18,414 1,710 - 83,834
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HTE - (43,980) (16,572) (1,662) - (62,214)
Net book amount REFE 119,873 19,730 1,842 48 - 141,493
At 31 March 2013 R-Z—=F=F=+—-H
Valuation hE 146,626 - - - - 146,626
Cost B AR - 74,310 18,778 465 - 93,553
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HTE - (51,773) (17,254) (458) - (69,485)
Net book amount REFE 146,626 22,537 1,524 7 - 170,694
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(cont’d)

Group (cont’d)

Note:

If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis,
the amounts would be as follows:

B 5 R AR MY

15 3% - BERZRE (F)

EHE R
B3 -

EHRE T RIBFIAELRAERRRERE  HEENOT -

Group
EE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHT
Cost 5% 41,256 41,256
Accumulated depreciation 2FHrE (4,270) (3,445)
Net book amount BREFE 36,986 37,811
The Group’s interests in leasehold land are analysed as follows: AEEMAEE TSI ¢
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E2-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
In Hong Kong BB
Lease of 10 to 50 years 10FE50F 2K 139,000 114,000
Outside Hong Kong SN
Lease of over 50 years 50 F LA 324 7,626 5,873

The leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and the PRC were
revalued by independent firms of professional valuers, Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, respectively.
Revaluations were made based on recent market transactions and
were then adjusted for specific conditions relating to the land and
buildings.

Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in

Hong Kong with a carrying amount of HK$79,000,000 (2012:
HK$62,000,000) (note 23).

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES —
COMPANY

Unlisted shares, at cost

LT - RRE

REEREBAZBELRETHHB L EEGEMTE 25 RER

HBFHEITERA B RXFITHEERARAR -

SETE > WIERBBLIRET 2 EBBRIENE -

A E DR T 5 R

RITERATE ZBE Ly RAE TR - HARE(E /479,000,000 7T

(=ZZ—=4 : 62,000,000 7T) (BfzE23) °

16 MIBARER — A2 F

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
FTHET

90,917

2012
—E——fF
HK$000
BT

90,917
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R EE S

16

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES —

COMPANY (cont’d)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31

March 2013:

Name of subsidiary
WEARER

Interest held directly:
EERRER:

E. Bon (BVI) Holdings Limited
E. Bon (BVI) Holdings Limited

Interests held indirectly:

BEEAER
Asia Bon Company Limited

EA(BM)BEEEERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
ML R
2

British Virgin Islands

RREAES

Hong Kong

16 B RIEZRE — A7 (F)

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAZRAE/
HEMER

50,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

50,000 R B 1 Fm .2 LRk

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1,000 each

100 A& AR 1,000/ 7T 2 L@

Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited
liabilities
BREERA

Company with limited
liabilities
BREEAH

Equity
interest
held
FRRAE
Bs

100%

100%

RIZB—=F=A=+—HZEENBRARMT :

Principal activities and
place of operation

FREBRERMH

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBEREER

Property holding in
Hong Kong
REBENERE

Bonco Ironmongery Limited

REALEMBRAA

10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000 R B BT 2 B B

Company with limited
liabilities

BREERH

Importing and sale of
architectural builders
hardware in Hong Kong

NEBEANHERSERS

Bonlex Properties Limited

AMEXBRAR

10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000 BB BTz L@

Company with limited
liabilities
BAREELR

Property holding
in the PRC
R BIE RS A

China Reconstruct Design Limited

US$140,000

140,000 7T

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

BHELE

100%

Providing consultation
services in interior
design, investment,
corporate management
and technical services
in the PRC

R BIREERRE
RE  CEER R
PR 2 7 AR

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

2 ordinary shares
of HK$100 each

2[R &R 10087 2 & B

Company with limited
liabilities

BREEAR

Handling of human
resources planning
and development
activities of the Group

REAEEANERRE
REREEH

E. Bon Building Materials Company
Limited

RATRENHERLH

Hong Kong

e

6,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each

6,000 i &% 1,000 T2
TR

Company with limited
liabilities

BREERH
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B 5 R AR MY

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES —

16 MIB A RIEZRE — X2 7 (F)

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRARKRAE/
HEMER

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2IREH 1 BT BRI

Legal structure

AR

Company with limited
liabilities

BREEAH

Equity
interest
held
JiESTAE
Bx

100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

IREBREFME

Importing and sale of
bathroom collections
in Hong Kong
REBEDREERARME

1,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1,000 B/ 18T 2 & Bk

Company with limited
liabilities

BREERH

Importing and sale

of kitchen fittings

in Hong Kong
BB A N EER R

10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000 AR B B TT 2 & SBAR

Company with limited
liabilities

BREEAR

Supplying architectural
builders hardware and
bathroom collections
for property
development
in Hong Kong

REBHERERS REA
RETHEERER

US$250,000

250,0003% 7T

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

BINELR

Supplying architectural
builders hardware
and bathroom
collections for property
development in
Shanghai
REBHERZELER
ERRBTNELRER

10,000 ordinary shares
of SGD1 each

10,000 R @A FT AN T

Company with limited
liabilities

LN

Supplying architectural
builders hardware and
bathroom collections
for property
development in
Singapore

RATIR R EREL S K
ERRBTNELRER

COMPANY (cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiary establishment
MM B AL
WEA R AR %
Interests held indirectly: (cont’d)
BiEsEER | (8)
H20 (Pro) Limited Hong Kong
KZRBRAR BE
Kitchen (Pro) Limited Hong Kong
BZRERAR BB
Massford (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
XE(BB)BRDA BB
Massford (Shanghai) Limited PRC
X5 (L8 asBRATA i
Massford Trading Pte Ltd. Singapore
Massford Trading Pte Ltd. 03K
MIA Limited Hong Kong
MIA Limited Bk
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1 ordinary share
of HK$1 each

1RER1BT 2 EER

Company with limited
liabilities

BREEAR

100%

Importing and sale of
architectural builders
hardware and furniture
in Hong Kong

REBEORBEERS
T & R
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COMPANY (cont’d)
Place of Issued and fully Equity
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held place of operation
ML R BETRARRE/ PR
WEAR AR B HEMER EERER & TEERREXLY
Interests held indirectly: (cont’d)
BiEsEER | (8
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited 100% Supplying architectural
of HK$1 each liabilities builders hardware and
bathroom collections
and furniture
through retail shops
in Hong Kong
BHERAR BB 1,000 BBR1BT2EBR AREERHA 100% BRTEENEEE
BETS  BARE
Rt
Sanfield Properties Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Company with limited 100% Property holding
of HK$1 each liabilities in the PRC
EBEXARAR BB 2RBRABT EBR BREEDA 100% SN eSS
Shanghai Tech Pro International PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% Importing and sale of
Trading Company Limited enterprise architectural builders
hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC
FERRERESERAA i 300,000 7T PERE 100% PR BIHE O ]2 g 2 4
T REAR
Shanghai Techpro Interior Decoration ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% Undertaking interior
Company Limited enterprise decoration and project
management for
property development
in the PRC
FEBREARHERDA H 5,000,000 AR PINERE 100% R EREE NG R
BREBRET
S
Sunny Building and Decoration Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares Company with limited ~ 100% Retail sales of
Materials Company Limited of HK$1,000 each liabilities architectural builders
hardware and bathroom
collections through
retail shops
in Hong Kong
HAEHT A TAERAR BE 6,000 A2 &% 1,0005 7 BREARA 100% BRTEENEATE
ZEBR HERER S REAR
Tech Pro (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Company with limited 100% Investment holding
of HK$1 each liabilities in the PRC
R (P E)BRAA BE 2BERI B ERK AREEAT 100% A BIER B
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — 16 HMiIEB A EHEzmE — XA F (&)
COMPANY (cont’d)
Place of Issued and fully Equity
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held place of operation
ML, R BERTRBERE/ ERA
WEA R AR b HEMER EERE Ei TEERREXLY
Interests held indirectly: (cont’d)
HEsEER (B
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
of HK$1 each liabilities architectural builders
hardware
RREMEASRAR BR __JORSRIEL EER ARALAA 100% _ REFENREERRLS
ViA (Shanghai) Limited PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% Importing and sale of
enterprise bathroom, furniture
and kitchen in Shanghai
Bn( L8 REBEERAR H 250,000 7T PINERE 100% R O REHERA
CUN TR
DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES 17 W () MB AR ZRE
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, s ()KMIBRARZFIBAERIF - &5 8 RIZBNE
interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying Ko REEBEREAABAYN—H(ZZE—ZF: —8) -
amounts approximate their fair values (2012: same).
INVENTORIES 18 &
2013 2012
—B—=fF —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Finished goods EK M 139,917 185,055

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to
HK$287,004,000 (2012: HK$233,732,000).

As at 31 March 2013, finished goods with cost of
HK$33,618,000 (2012: HK$31,380,000) was
considered as obsolete. A provision of HK$2,238,000
(2012: HK$2,436,000) was made during the year ended
31 March 2013.

EFREERTERSAIRIHERET | WFERR R
287,004,000 7T (==& — =4 : 233,732,000/ 7T) °

R-ZT—=F=A=+—8  B¥HEKSRAES33618,000
BL(=Z——4 :31,380,00087T) - RBE-_T— =%
A=+ HLFEBRIFEREEH22380008TL(=F
— % : 2,436,000/87T) °
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18

19

INVENTORIES (cont’d)

The movement in the provision for inventory

obsolescence is as follows:

At beginning of the year

Provision for inventory obsolescence

At end of the year

TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Details of the trade, retention and other receivables as
at 31 March 2013 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables

Amounts due from customers for
contract work (note a)

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less:  non-current portion

Retention receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Current portion

18 #E& (&)
BRTFEREZSHNT :
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
REH) 31,380 28,944
BT ERE 2,238 2,436
REL 33,618 31,380
19 BEWER - BERWREBRRHMEWRK
RZE—Z=F=A=+—0  BRER BRRBEREE
ftb FE WK 2 FEIB LA -
Group Company
FEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF —E-=F —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FTAT THERT FTAT
FEMBR K 70,184 78,306 - -
A AR SOR (B
(904) (1,223) - -
69,280 77,083 - -
FEWRER X 8,751 7,847 = _
BWEF 2 & TRER
(KizEa) 8,296 8,867 - -
HAh UK - iRE RIRK
19,763 32,571 19 44
106,090 126,368 19 44
B FEBIEREE
FEWRER K (8,751) (7,847) - -
e REARK (7,064) (7,358) - -
ENERER & 90,275 111,163 19 44

All non-current receivables are due within five years
from the end of the respective reporting dates.

AR D c BEFERES A 2 HEARREFA

FH o
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19 TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (cont’d)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting
date by due date is as follows:

B 5 R AR MY

19 BWERR - BUWRERREAAEKR (&)

FEW RN IS B 2 iRk CAZIHIAF &) 24T

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Current BN ER 24,982 23,143
1-90 days past due BEI1 = 90K 18,219 40,002
91-180 days past due BHEI91 2 180K 11,109 5,361
181-270 days past due BHI181 270K 4,745 4,990
271-365 days past due BH271 2 365K 4,830 1,503
Over 365 days past due B HAER B 365 K 6,299 3,307
70,184 78,306

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms
of 30 to 90 days. In some cases, customers may be
granted an extended credit period of up to 120 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not
impaired is as follows:

AEEZHEFEEMHANB O R/I0EWNH - EFHHIFFH
EEHERERZ 1208 -

REBERE Z R R 2 Rl D AT an T

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—EF—=F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Not yet past due BNER 24,982 23,143
1-90 days past due BHEI1 = 90K 18,219 40,002
91-180 days past due #HI91 = 180K 11,109 5,361
181-270 days past due #HI181 E 270K 4,745 4,990
271-365 days past due #HI271 & 365K 4,830 1,503
Over 365 days past due i HA A 8 865 K 5,395 2,084
69,280 77,083

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a wide range of customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are expected to be fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ERBERMERERBZERKFREE TEAEEER
FERLHEZEP - BREBELR AaRNARBKRRZE
EEXUESAEE  BRGET2EURE - BULEIRER
EREEHRBRELRERE ARBELERZSZEHE
BEAERR -
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R EE S

At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. As at 31 March 2013, the Group
determined trade receivables of HK$904,000 (2012:
HK$1,223,000) as individually impaired. The impaired
trade receivables are due from customers experiencing
financial difficulties that were in default or delinquency
of payments.

As at 31 March 2013, the carrying values of trade and
other receivables approximate their fair values (2012:
same).

Note:

(@) Construction contracts

The aggregate cost incurred and recognised profits
(less recognised losses) to date
Less: Progress billings

Net financial position for ongoing contracts

REERIREZHE

19 TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER 19 BUWERR - BURE Uk HAtb UK ()
RECEIVABLES (cont’d)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade EBER SR EREE BT
receivables is as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Balance at 1 April KU A—H 1,223 1,223
Provision for impaired receivables BRI EEE 5 -
Receivables written off during the year as FRFI Aok Bl [T # FE Uk o s
uncollectible (324) -
Balance at 31 March W=A=+—H 904 1,223

REIHRER - A5 B DA R K& 288 =X A FE UL 5k 80 R B 1
i c RZZE—=F=A=+—0 AEEERARWER
fF 2.904,000/8 7T (ZZF — —4F : 1,223,00087T) & Z & 1E
BIRE - BUERFRELBHNEF R BB Z 4 ReeEE
S HERFKIE o

RIZ—=F=A=+—8 BREIREBEKINIE

EEERAABEBARYN—BH(ZZ—-F: =) -

G

(a) TR

REER  BETEZFRARE
R OREE R ZER)
B ERTIREER

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F T fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
76,978 59,399
(68,682) (60,532)
8,296 8,867
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20 RESTRICTED CASH

21

Restricted cash

Restricted bank deposits of HK$2,867,000 represented
fixed term deposits placed in commercial bank and
were pledged against performance bonds granted to
the Group (note 30).

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits
was 1.15% per annum as at 31 March 2013.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand ROTERKES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$625,000 (2012:
HK$592,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC,
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign
exchange control.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposit
was 0.05% (2012: 0.37%) per annum as at 31 March
2013.

B 5 R AR MY

20 ZRFFES
2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
THET
ZR RS 2,867
PR HI$RTT1E R 2,867,000 B L IE 17 A B £ R1T 2 EHITE
N REGRERMIEAREEIERITEORENIER R
(M47E30) °
RZE—=F=ZA=1+—8 ZRHBOTERZIEREF
T £1.15% °
21 BERBAESEEY
Group Company
REE b /NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B=F —E——F —B=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FEx FHET
71,907 33,457 269 565

R-ZZT—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H8 ' "&EENRSRBTELYD
625,000/ (== — — 4 : 592,000/ 7T) E1F AR H iR
17 BRZHMNERBIE F

R-ZE—=%F=A=+—H8B BHRTFEREREMNXRA
0.05% (=ZF——4%F : 0.37%) °
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R EE S

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22
RECEIPT IN ADVANCE
Trade payables FERTERR

Accrued charges and other payables®  fE=t & B K E Al ek

PR BRAR - H BN R K FAWKIR

Group Company
rEE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T-CF —E-Z=F —T—CF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THT TER THT
24,030 39,219 - -
11,851 9,123 2,005 109

35,881 48,342 2,005 109

Receipt in advance TAWKIE

38,216 46,989

At 31 March 2013, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables was as follows:

0-90 days 0ZE 90K
91-180 days 91 £180K
181-270 days 181 270K
271-365 days 271 £ 365K
Over 365 days ftR 18 365 K

As at 31 March 2013, the carrying values of trade and
other payables approximate their fair values (2012:
same).

* As at 31 March 2013, included in other payables was amount
due to a related company of HK$1,161,000 (2012: amount due
from a related company of HK$369,000 included in other
receivables) which was unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

R-T-=#=A=+-8 EREKZ

FRECDATAAT

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
23,771 36,570
151 1,627
70 843
- 151
38 28
24,030 39,219

RZFB—Z=ZF=A=+—H8  ENEIREMLEMNFTOIK
EEERAAEAYN—BR(ZT—2F: —%) -

RZZ-—=F=A=+—H SEEEMCEMNKAZ1,161,000
BARA—HBABARENR(ZT—=F : BREEEMERIA
2.869,00078 7T & — B A R UWK) © BN SR EER - &

S RIZBAERK
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23 BORROWINGS 23 &

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THT
Current TED
Secured HHEH
— Bank loans — BITER 30,074 12,299
Unsecured SEI 17
— Bills payables and trust receipt loans — ERNERREFBIEER 23,044 58,378
— Bank loans — BITER 9,837 6,673
— Bank overdrafts — BITEX 11,016 12,369
73,971 89,719

All bills payables and trust receipt loans are wholly
repayable within one year.

Bills payables and trust receipt loans are denominated
either in HKS, US$ or Euro. All bank loans and overdraft
are denominated in HK$ and RMB.

Some of the Group’s loan agreements are subject to
covenant clauses. As at 31 March 2013, the Group did
not fulfil a covenant clause as set out in a loan
agreement for a credit line of HK$61,000,000 (2012:
HK$35,000,000), whereby the Group should settle 30%
of its trade receivables through this bank. As at 31
March 2013, the Group had drawn bills payable and
trust receipt loans of HK$13,269,000 (2012:
HK$8,365,000) and unsecured bank loans of
HK$9,837,000 (2012: Nil), totalling HK$23,106,000
(2012: HK$8,365,000). With this breach of the covenant
clause, the bank is contractually entitled to request
immediate repayment of the outstanding amount of
HK$23,106,000 and cancel the undrawn facilities. The
Group had obtained a waiver of this covenant clause
from the bank subsequent to the balance sheet date.

In addition, as at 31 March 2012, the Group also did
not fulfil the current ratio and quick ratio as set out in
another loan agreement for a credit line of
HK$40,000,000, of which the Group has drawn bills
payable and trust receipt loans of HK$7,590,000 and
bank overdrafts of HK$4,630,000, totalling
HK$12,220,000. These borrowings were subsequently
settled during the year ended 31 March 2013.

B

ERNEERERKBEFEAR —FATHREE -

5

BNEEREFPBEERZEETR /BT  XTHET -
FBERTEEREX ZHEEERABTRARE -

AEBBHOERBEMBERZOGEX - RZZT—=F=A
=S+—HB AKEETAFTE—MNDERBEEAEH
61,000,000/ 7t (= Z — —4F : 35,000,000/8 L) BEREE
BEZRZAGY 8T HEASBEERZRTEEERE
WERFH230% - R—_ZE—=F=ZA=+—H X£EEH
RAzENERRETRIEERE £13,269,000 8 L (=F
— 4 : 8,365,000/87T) + p1_EEIKIFIRITE 509,837,000
BIL(ZT—Z4F : &) » 8% /523,106,0008 L (ZFT—=
£ : 8,365,000 L) c ARERZNKEX - |ITAIELE
S BB ¥ 5% 28 23,106,000 B o A 1 2 ERER REBUEFT B
REAZEEREE AKBEREE B BRZZOEM
RITERISEA R ©

o RZF——F=ZA=+—8 AEEZRHILERK
RENLL R IR R S 5 — 10 B 5K 5 PTEk A 78 40,000,000 7
TRAXEEREEZHAE MAKSER=_Z—=—F=A
=+—HEBAZENEEREFLBEERE 17,590,000
77T 0 AN £ 3R 778 1 4,630,000 JT ¢ 485 412,220,000
B ZSERBECREE_Z—=F=A=+—H81
FEBEERE -
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The effective interest rate is 1.42% (2012: 1.30%) for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

23 BORROWINGS (cont’d) 23 &R (&)
At 31 March 2013, the Group’s borrowings were R-ZE—=F=ZFA=+—H AEEEEZEZEROT :
repayable as follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Within one year —FE R 49,014 78,713
In the second year F-FER 5,235 1,305
In the third to fifth year FE=FEZFEREN 15,368 3,985
After fifth year HE E 4,354 5,716
73,971 89,719
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Wholly repayable within five years AFREERE 62,966 77,420
Wholly repayable after five years hFERER 11,005 12,299
73,971 89,719
Bank borrowings of HK$30,074,000 (2012: $R 17 330,074,000 7T (=T — — 4 : 12,299,000 7T)
HK$12,299,000) are secured by leasehold land and 72 LAZR &2 [ A 79,000,000 7 T 69 A0 & £ 3 RAEFIEE R (=
buildings of the Group of HK$79,000,000 (2012: T ——4F : 62,000,000 %) (KHIzE15) °
HK$62,000,000) (note 15).
The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at MEFSDHENERZ AR BEZERKEEE -
floating rate, equals their carrying amounts.
The Group had the following undrawn borrowing AEBEUATAPAZREDRE
facilities:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FH&T
Floating rate: TFENFIE
— Expiring within one year — —FRE|HA 124,574 82,400

HE-_Z-—=F=ZA=+T—HBLFENEEMNEAE1.42%
(ZF—=%F :1.30%) °
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24 DEFERRED TAXATION

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:
Deferred income tax asset to be recovered
after more than 12 months
Deferred income tax asset to be recovered
within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred income tax liability to be recovered
after more than 12 months

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

At 1 April WA —B

Credited/(charged) to profit st A/ (318) Bk
or loss (note 11) (MIsE11)

At 31 March R=A=+—H

B 5 R AR MY

24 EEFIE
FEIERIBEENMELERIBEENDTAOT -

2013 2012
= —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THT
EERIBEE ¢
+ZEAZAIIKE 2 EER A E
1,804 1,725
+ZEARAIIKE 2 EERTEE E
1,102 548
2,906 2,273
EERIEBE ¢
T E AR ZELEREAE
18,499 13,868
AEBZELERBEEERBEZSHUT :
EEBIEEE
Tax losses Others Total
R Hit &t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

—B-=F % —F -B-=f T _F _F-=F T —-F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
F#x  TET  FET  TET  FTEx  TAT
388 1396 1,885 1,425 2273 2,821

891 (1,008 (258) 460 633 (548)
1,279 388 1,627 1,885 2,906 2273
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24 DEFERRED TAXATION (cont’d)
Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1 April

Charged to other
comprehensive income
(note 11)

REA—H
e Ktz mmias (1)

Charged to profit or loss maBEmikR (1)
(note 11)
At 31 March R=A=+—8

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$15,196,000 (2012: HK$16,444,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. These tax losses will expire
as the following:

In the first to fifth year inclusive
No expiry date

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$241,000 as at 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$166,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings total HK$4,824,000
at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$3,318,000), and the
Group does not intend to remit these unremitted
earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the Company
in the foreseeable future.

24 EEBIIE (&)

EEHRESE
Revaluation of
properties Others Total
MEEL Ht &t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F % —_F -B-=F _F —_F —%-=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TERT FHET FHET FHBTT TET FHT
13,868 12,458 - - 13,868 12,458
4,620 1,410 - - 4,620 1,410
- - 11 - 11 -
18,488 13,868 11 - 18,499 13,868

RZF—=F=A=+—8 AEENKAEREHRTH
B E51815,196,00078 7T (= F — — 4 : 16,444,000/87T) 2
BEERBEE  BWAREERG AR REEBTAA
BEES R RER A MEBAHEEE - ZEHBEBBZ
FIEE T ¢

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_4F

HK$’000 HK$000

FET T

EF—FEFRAFAN(RREEREMF) 12,723 8,994
RAEHE 2,473 7,450
15,196 16,444

RZFB—=F=A=+—8 UERETHWBARZKE
BAEMZENHEEIREMBEERRZECHBEREA
241,000 75 (= F— =4 : 166,000/ L) - R=_ZT—=4F
=ZA=1+—8  "KREARFEH£754,824,000 Hr(=F
— — 4 : 3,318,000 7T ) ° A5 BN AR 4T E R Al R 2R B
ARREEBHBARZ HKREARF -
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SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each
At 1 April and 31 March

EE

Issued and fully paid: BETRZHI

Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each
At 1 April and 31 March

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 9 September 2010 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
grant any of its directors and employees options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. On 27 January
2011, the Company granted 7,700,000 share options
to certain of its directors and employees at an exercise
price of HK$0.814 per share.

The options are vested after one year from the date of
grant and are then exercisable within a period of two
years. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.

BREE1 BT EER
REOA—BR=A=+—H

BREEC BT EBR

REA—BR=A=1—H

B 5 R AR MY

25 BRZR
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Number of Number of

shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
RAEE THT EGEALE FHL
1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
300,300,000 30,030 300,300,000 30,030
300,300,000 30,030 300,300,000 30,030

26 LARR1D AT HREN 2 KIE

ARARAR-Z-ZFNANBRANBERETS  AAFE
EUHNBERETMNEENMEER TARBARRKRN ZE
iE - RZZE——F—F_++tH ARAANRTEESFR
0.814 BT 7,700,000 D iERETE TEERES °

BREERRDLAHEFT —FREE  YRMFERITRE -
BOBERER THEAENATRE-RAQF 2 EEK -
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26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (cont’d)
Share options and weighted average exercise price are
as follows for the reporting periods presented:

Outstanding at 1 April R A —B HRITE
Granted Bl

Forfeited R

Lapsed K

Outstanding at 31 March R=A=+—HHKTE
Exercisable at 31 March R=ZA=+—Huf7{E

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
the following expiry date and exercise price:

Expiry date Z|H8 A

26 January 2014 —E—MNFE—A=+"H

The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had
exercise prices of HK$0.814 (2012: HK$0.814) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of
approximately one year (2012: approximately two
years).

26 LA <YM 2 7E ()
AR ER 2 512 PRAHE R BN I (TEEE M T

2013 2012
—E-=f —ET——F

Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number  exercise price
InFEF T
#A TEE #H 1T6eE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
6,400 0.814 7,700 0.814
- - (1,300) 0.814
(470) 0.814 - -
5,930 0.814 6,400 0.814
5,930 0.814 6,400 0.814

RER  WARTTRBREZZHARTEERT

Exercise price
in HKS per
share option
BHERE
TEEGER)

0.814

Options (thousands)

BB AE (T AR)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
5,930 6,400

R-ZTE—=FE=ZA=+—H8  HATEEREZTEES
0814 (=T ——4F : 0814 L) EMEFHHT A
NEMH—FE(ZF——F : HIRFE) °
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RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 50 and 51.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Company are
required to appropriate certain % of their profits after
tax to the respective statutory reserves. Subject to
certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, this statutory reserve may be used to
reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-
up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserves of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and
share premium account of the group companies
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) on 22 March 2000, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus
made by the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries
of the Company before the group reorganisation on 22
March 2000.
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27 RESERVES (cont’d) 27 & (&)
Company EAT
Share Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
D IRE BRERE REBF &&t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 April 2011 R-_ZE——FmA—H 47,445 341 4,733 52,519
Loss for the year (note 12) EEERE(fF12) = = (1,108) (1,108)
Share-based compensation (note 26)  LARR % 3z (3R B 2 7B
(Ff=E26) - 1,360 - 1,360
Dividends (note 13(a)) i 2 (f5E13(@)) (18,018) - - (18,018)
At 31 March 2012 NZE——F£=A=+—8H 29,427 1,701 3,630 34,758
At 1 April 2012 R-_ZE——FmA—H 29,427 1,701 3,630 34,758
Profit for the year (note 12) FEERF (HEE12) - - 108,098 108,098
Transfer of share option reserve upon — BLARR % (3R 2 2018
lapse of share-based compensation SR S B AR
(note 26) GEZD) = (125) 125 -
Dividends (note 13(a)) 8. (F13E13() = = (9,009) (9,009)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=F=+—H 29,427 1,576 102,844 133,847
28 CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 28 KEELE(FFRANERS
OPERATIONS
2013 2012
=A== —E——F
HK$°000 HK$000
ﬁ FERT FHET
@ Cash flows from operating activities KRETHNRESRE
] Profit before income tax KRB T8 AR A 30,461 24,698
N | . .
= Adjustments for: SEEEE
> Finance costs W58 A 1,162 847
o Finance income Bl e (35) (141)
L E Provision for inventory obsolescence BT ERE 2,238 2,436
8 (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HENREZ
plant and equipment CONVE-ES (168) 20
" Depreciation e 11,967 11,289
WX Share-based compensation LARRAR 219 3R 2 3B = 1,360
E_‘F
'I.S Operating profit before working capital changes 48 & 4 B 83T 2 404 5% Fl 45,625 40,509
; Inventories FE 42,922 (75,041)
(o) Trade, retention and other receivables FEUER TR ~ FEUIR B 51 K B At FE UK 17,843 (23,672)
u (_,LJ Trade and other payables JFE 1T BR 3 K2 LAt PR 5 3Kk (12,818) 15,411
- Receipt in advance FBUL N IB (8,773) 14,897
3
% Cash generated from/(used in) operations RBEL (FrA) MRS 84,799 (27,896)
| |
106 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 | 16T AER AR —T— = F 44



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R AR MY

28 CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 28 REELE(FTA)WEE (E)
OPERATIONS (cont’d)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds RiZEHeRERAN  HEWE  BERRBEZAFHE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment B
comprise:
2013 2012
= —T—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Net book amount (note 15) BREFE (FisE15) = 20
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BREREHEZBRA(BXR)
plant and equipment 168 (20)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE R RS2 e sE
plant and equipment 168 -
29 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 290 RKEHEARE
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had future aggregate RZZE—=F=R=+—H8 ' AKEREBETAIHE2 i
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable REFEEHEMN AR N 2 HEBENREREAT -
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as
follows:
Group REH
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Within one year —FER 42,339 32,795
In the second to fifth year inclusive FFEFAFRN(BREEMRE) 18,609 27,347
60,948 60,142
Company PN
As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no significant RZE—Z=F=ZA=+—H ARQAWEERLEHERK
operating lease commitments (2012: Nil). B(ZE——F:E)-
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R EE S

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31

Company

As at 31 March 20183, the Company had executed
corporate guarantees to secure banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries. Facilities utilised by the
subsidiaries amounted to HK$73,971,000 (2012:
HK$89,719,000) as at 31 March 2013.

As at 31 March 2013, performance bonds of
approximately HK$11,271,000 (2012: HK$8,192,000)
have been issued by the Group to customers as
security of contracts. Of which, restricted cash of
HK$2,867,000 was held as security for performance
bond of the same amount.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties:

(@) Related party relationship
HEEALTBE

Key management personnel, including directors
FTETBAE (BIEES)

A company under common control
by certain directors of the Company*
—MRARRBETEFLRES 2 AR

A company controlled by a close family member
of a former director of the Company*
—MXARRBRESREKEEH 2 A

* NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr.
TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr.
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of the Company, have
beneficial interests. The rental expenses paid were in the
normal course of business at terms mutually agreed
between the Group and NCL.

2 ACL is a company controlled by a close family member
of Mr. YICK Kai Chung, a former director of the
Company. The purchase transactions were carried out
at terms mutually agreed between the two parties.

30 HAREE
NN
RZZE—=F=fA=+—H ' ARApgETHEARFMH
ARTEREELHARTNER - RZTE—=F=A=+—H0"
MEBARESBZRITRELTERT3,971,000F T (==
— =% : 89,719,000 7T) °
RZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H AEEERATFELBLR
FEH11,271,0008 (=T — =4 : 8,192,000/875) {5
BHRPER - HPRR £ 2,867,000 mi5 6 EHER 258
ZBARE 2R -
31 BAEALRZS
BRRAGEMBREREMTIBEZR G AR REF
ERN - AEEEB@EEATZETATRS :
Nature of transaction 2013 2012
REME —E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Short-term employee benefits 7,722 8,716
EHE TR
Post-employment benefits 83 79
B2 B AT &
Share-based compensation - 399
LARR 1 32 1~ S Bl 2 5k I8
Rental expenses paid to 2,460 2,240
Negotiator Consultants
Limited (“NCL”)
3 fi F Negotiator
Consultants Limited ([NCL])
ZHEeRAEZ
Expenses paid on behalf of NCL - 574
RENCLE 2
Purchase from Argo 10,934 12,373

Corporation Limited (“ACL”")

MEMEEERAR((ERDEE

ARBESEHIOELLE - HMELL S BEERBE
BEENNCLEER Btk - HERXAEREEBKER
RN SR B B NCL B AR T B IR A ©

‘ THRERERARANEEFIHMRELENRBLENA
Al AEBEIEIZEFRENEAEE -
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(cont’d)

(b)

Balances with related parties

B 5 R AR MY

31 BEALRS (&)

(b)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 Z=-2—=%5=F=+—H

IEFEE

Other (payables)/receivables from

— NCL — NCL

For the year ended 31 March 2012

LFE
Other receivables from H A e Wk
— NCL — NCL

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values (2012: same).

During July to December 2012, certain executive
directors, a company’s shareholder (who is also a
relative to those executive directors) and a former
executive director collectively advanced non-
interest bearing loans of HK$36,544,000 to the
Group, of which HK$35,919,000 was settled
during the year. As at 31 March 2013, the Group
had an outstanding loan of HK$625,000 due to a
former executive director of the Group recorded
in other payables.

H o (AR, MR

HE_ZT-——#=-A=+—H

BEALT 2R
Maximum
receivable
At end At beginning balance
of the year of the year during the year
FERERREAR
RNEL REHD £E
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT FHT
(1,161) 369 369
369 1,303 1,303

BERAEER BN ERIBAEN - REEEER
REAN—B(=ZF—=F: %) -

R-B——F+AZ+_AHHE ETHTES - —
BARRRZBR (T RZERTEEZRE) L —R50
MITEF SR M ALK E R 36,544,0008 T 2 %8
B AEh35919,000 TENFAER - R-F
—=F=A=t—H AEEBERAEE—BATHAT
B2 RMERBERA62500087T - BrLERm A
A e
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFEEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_Z—=F=-A=+—HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
= ZT—=-F ZT——F ZT-=F ZTThF
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000
FET F&TT F&TT FH&TT F&TT

Results ES
Profit attributable to equity holders  ZNATIFTE &
of the Company FE(R A 24,512 19,367 11,682 44 231 22,108
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F ZE——-F ZT——F ZZT-TF —ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET THET FET TET
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 498,963 490,839 396,030 377,210 278,618
Total liabilities BaE (172,017)  (205,427)  (123,213)  (137,507)  (82,785)
Shareholders’ equity A% R = 326,946 285,412 272,817 239,703 195,833

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the AEEHE—T—=F=A=+—HIABEFERNZXE BE
five years ended 31 March 2013 have been prepared on a RBETRGEEEERS -
consolidated basis.
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